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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

MISSION

Provide communities in the State of West Virginia (the “State”) financial assistance for development
and continued maintenance of water, wastewater, and economic infrastructure that will improve
drinking water quality, protect public health, protect the streams of the State and provide
infrastructure to encourage economic growth.

The West Virginia Water Development Authority (the “WDA?) is the agency that coordinates the
financing and closing for all infrastructure and economic development loans and provides financing
for the design, construction, improvement and acquisition of water and wastewater facilities to Local
Governmental Agencies (the “LGA’s”) (municipalities, public service districts and other political
subdivisions). The WDA is also the administrative oversight agency for servicing loans and grants
made from its revenue bond programs, the West Virginia Infrastructure Fund, the Clean Water State
Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund.

ESTABLISHMENT

Established in 1972 by the West Virginia Legislature, the WDA commenced services in 1974 and is
authorized to provide financial assistance to Local Governmental Agencies to help them meet the
requirements of State and Federal water pollution control and safe drinking water laws, thereby
protecting the health of the State’s citizens, improving water quality, and protecting the environment
while constructing and upgrading infrastructure to attract economic development.

The WDA operates under the supervision of the West Virginia Water Development Board (the
“Board”). The Board is composed of seven members, including three ex officio members: the
Governor or designee, the Secretary of the Department of Environmental Protection or designee, and
the Commissioner of the Bureau for Public Health or designee. The remaining four members of the
Board are appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the State Senate, for terms of
six years. Appointed Board members may be reappointed to serve additional terms. No more than
two of the appointed Board members shall at any one time belong to the same political party. The
Governor or designee serves as chair. The Board annually elects one of its appointed members as
vice chair and appoints a secretary-treasurer, who need not be a member of the Board.

The WDA has a staff of ten and utilizes professional services to supplement its staff as needed. The
WDA is self-supporting and does not receive State appropriations for operating expenses or bond

programs.



GOALS

Assist communities in obtaining loan and grant funds to help meet an estimated $3.5 billion
in needs for adequate publicly owned water and wastewater systems, which improve health
conditions as well as achieve and maintain compliance with State and federal water quality
laws.

Administer loans and grants through the execution of payments to LGA’s, monitoring
repayments per loan agreements, and reconciling balances with the Municipal Bond
Commission in order to protect capital investments and the WDA’s and State’s credit ratings
for its revenue bond programs.

Secure the maximum federal funding available each year under the CWSRF for wastewater
projects and the DWTRF for drinking water projects by providing the required 20% match.

OBJECTIVES

Maximize and leverage the use of all available State, federal and local funding sources by
participating in the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council’s technical
and financial review process on all proposed water and wastewater projects.

Serve as a voting member on the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development
Council.

Assist in the commitment of available Clean Water State Revolving Fund, Drinking Water
Treatment Revolving Fund, West Virginia Infrastructure Fund and WDA dollars to cost-
effective and environmentally sound projects as expeditiously as possible.

Ensure the availability of revolving dollars to meet future needs by assisting struggling or
defaulting communities to resolve underlying problems indicated by repayment activity on
loans.

Verify compliance with loan agreements by conducting financial audit reviews on selected
water and wastewater loan recipients.

Obtain funds for the WDA and West Virginia Infrastructure Fund through public bond
offerings to finance construction/improvement of water and wastewater systems.

Provide accountability for funds managed through preparation of various reports, including
financial statements that are audited annually.

Provide Secondary Market Disclosure and Reporting and other information to rating
agencies and bond insurers.



OBJECTIVES (continued)

Maximize investment earnings through competitive bid process and investment contracts.

Educate the public and potential funding recipients about the availability of funding for water
and wastewater systems and the value of improvements to those systems by participating in
annual conferences and trade conventions.

RESPONSIBILITIES

Managing the WDA’s various loan programs and servicing its loans.
Coordinating infrastructure-related revenue bond issuance activity.

Serving as administrative agency for the Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council
(“IJDC”).

Participating as a voting member of the IJDC.
Serving as fiduciary of the IJDC’s West Virginia Infrastructure Fund (“WVIF™),

Serving as administrative agency for the Department of Environmental Protection’s Clean
Water State Revolving Fund (“CWSRF”).

Serving as financial manager for the Bureau for Public Health’s Drinking Water Treatment
Revolving Fund (“DWTRF”).

Closing and servicing all loans funded by the WVIF, CWSRF, DWTRF and WDA.
Maintaining financial records, preparing and analyzing financial statements and preparing
underlying work papers for three programs that are audited annually by certified public
accounting firms.

Reviewing, approving and processing debt service semi-annually on general obligation and
revenue bonds.

Providing Secondary Market Disclosure and Reporting and other information to rating
agencies and bond insurers,

Communicating with the Water Development Board and other State agencies.

Working with Local Governmental Agencies on project development and funding solutions,



RESPONSIBILITIES (Continued)

. Providing loans from other available funds for projects that are not eligible under the revenue
bond programs.

. Providing Bridge Loans from other available funds for projects until revenue bond proceeds
are available for permanent financing.

The WDA serves as administrative agency for the Department of Environmental Protection’s
CWSRF by:

Administering the local bond purchase process.

Preparing loan agreements.

Closing loans with Local Governmental Agencies.

Maintaining bonds, bond transcripts and project-related files for annual United States
Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) program audits.

The WDA serves as financial manager for the Bureau for Public Health’s DWTRF by:

Providing ongoing servicing functions for all loans outstanding as of June 30, 2015.
Maintaining financial records, preparing and analyzing financial statements and preparing
underlying work papers for the annual financial and compliance audits by a certified public
accounting firm.,

. Maintaining bonds, bond transcripts and project-related files for annual EPA program audits.
Performing desk reviews of subrecipient audits.

. Administering the local bond purchase process.

o Preparing loan agreements.

. Closing loans with Local Governmental Agencies.
o Disbursing payments to projects.

L]

The WDA serves as fiduciary for the Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council’s WVIF
by:

Administering the local bond purchase and grant process.

Disseminating loan and grant agreements.

Closing loans and grants with Local Governmental Agencies.

Disbursing payments to projects.

Providing ongoing servicing functions for all loans outstanding as of June 30, 2015.
Maintaining financial records, preparing and analyzing financial statements and preparing
underlying work papers for the annual financial statement audit by a certified public
accounting firm.

. Maintaining bonds, notes, bond transcripts and project-related files.



RESPONSIBILITIES (Continued)

. Coordinating infrastructure-related revenue bond issuance activity.

. Reviewing, approving and processing debt service semi-annually on general obligation and
revenue bonds.

. Providing Secondary Market Disclosure and Reporting and other information to rating
agencies and bond insurers.

) Issuing bonds on behalf of the IJDC.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS
. Celebrated 41 Years of Service 1974 - 2015.

. Closed 75 loans and grants totaling $295 million this year to communities for water,
wastewater and economic development projects.

. Provided servicing for over 812 loans (local bonds of communities) outstanding as of June
30, 2015 totaling $1.201 billion.

. Acted in a fiduciary capacity for funding of loans and grants in excess of $1.634 billion and
continued to meet the challenge of enhancing and creating adequate infrastructure for the

citizens of West Virginia.

PROGRAMS

The WDA administers a variety of programs to provide long-term, short-term and private-activity
financing at favorable interest rates for design, construction, improvement and acquisition of water
and wastewater systems. Generally, WDA revenue bond programs are funded with proceeds from
water development bonds issued by the WDA. Moneys in the various WDA programs are loaned to
municipalities, public service districts and other political subdivisions through the purchase of local
revenue bonds and/or notes issued by these Local Governmental Agencies. The loans are repaid from
the revenues of the systems or other permanent financing.

Using other funds available to it, the WDA makes low-interest loans to cover the design and related
costs of wastewater and water projects, which assist communities in getting projects ready for
construction with short-term affordable rates that are taken out with permanent financing when the
project goes to construction.



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As a financing entity, the purpose of the WDA is debt issuance and administration, including loan
servicing. Servicing is vitally important because loan repayments are used to make debt service
payments on publicly marketed bonds issued by the WDA or revolved for future projects. The
viability and success of the programs administered by the WDA are dependent on the servicing
aspect provided by the WDA. If servicing is not managed, bond reserve funds would potentially be
needed to meet debt service payments with subsequent appeal to the Governor to replenish the
reserve funds deficiency through the budget process.

By statute, the maximum amount of bonds the WDA is authorized to have outstanding includes debt
issued for the WDA and by the WDA on behalf of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs
Development Council. The amount of bonds or notes outstanding may not exceed $500 million at
any time; provided that before the WDA issues bonds or notes in excess of $440 million, the State
Legislature must pass a resolution authorizing this action. Senate Bill 245, enacted by the State
Legislature on March 12, 2011, provides an exception to the $500 million ceiling for the limited
purpose of providing grants for capital improvements for designated projects in the Chesapeake Bay
and Greenbrier Watershed areas. These bonds were issued October 16, 2014 in the amount of
$75,790,000 plus an issue premium of $12,350,934.85 for a total of $88,140,934.85 and will be
repaid from additional special appropriated lottery revenue. The WDA's long-term planning is
accomplished within the confines of its authorized borrowing limit. The WDA continues to monitor
its long-term outstanding debt for prepayment and refunding opportunities for debt service savings.
While the redemption of bonds is economically prudent because of the resulting debt service savings,
any reduction in the liability for long-term debt also enables the WDA to manage debt capacity for
future needs as well as for new programs. At year end, the WDA had $384 million in revenue and
refunding bonds outstanding, including $184 million in Infrastructure revenue Bonds.

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND

In 1987, the Congress of the United States replaced the construction grants program with a State-
operated revolving loan fund to provide no-interest or low-interest loans to Local Governmental
Agencies to assist in financing wastewater projects. Under this program, grants that must be
matched by State funds are awarded by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™)
to the Department of Environmental Protection (“DEP”). The federal grants and State matching
grants are deposited in a perpetual revolving fund designated as the Clean Water State Revolving
Fund (“*CWSRF”) and remain in perpetuity by revolving the principal repayments and interest earned
on the loans to make more loans.

As of June 30, 2015, DEP had been awarded twenty-six capitalization grant awards for the CWSRF
from the EPA totaling $596 million. The State is required to provide an additional twenty percent of
the federal award as matching funds in order to qualify for funding. The State has contributed to the
CWSRF $107 million in matching funds, of which $89 million has been contributed by the IIDC.

The WDA coordinates the initial Local Governmental Agency bond financing process and performs



the ongoing loan servicing functions for the CWSRF.,

DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

The Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund (“DWTRF) was established pursuant to the Safe
Drinking Water Act and by the Legislature under Chapter 16, Article 13C of the West Virginia Code.
The purpose of the act was to establish and implement a State-operated perpetual revolving loan fund
to provide no-interest or low-interest Ioans to Local Governmental Agencies and other eligible water
providers to assist in financing drinking water infrastructure projects, including but not limited to,
treatment, distribution, transmission, storage, and extensions; and remain in perpetuity by revolving
the principal repayments and interest earned from the loans to make more loans. The DWTRF’s loan
programs are designed to provide financial and compliance assistance to eligible water providers in
the State. Such loan programs provide long-term financing to cover all or a portion of the cost of
qualifying projects.

As of June 30, 2015, the Bureau for Public Health (“BPH”) had been awarded nineteen capitalization
grant awards from the EPA totaling $176.9 million, one of those grant awards being a Stimulus
Grant, of which $134.0 million was allocated to the DWTRF and $42.9 million for set-aside
programs administered by the BPH. The State is required to provide an additional twenty percent of
the federal award as matching funds in order to qualify for funding, On behalf of the State, the IIDC
has contributed $31.5 million in matching funds to the DWTRF.

The WDA coordinates the initial Local Governmental Agency bond financing process and performs
the ongoing loan servicing functions for the DWTRF.

WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

The Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council (“LIDC*) was created as a governmental entity of
the State under the provisions of Chapter 31, Article 15A, Section 3 of the West Virginia Code, as
amended, which also established the West Virginia Infrastructure Fund (“WVIF”), The IUDC has
statutory responsibility to review the preliminary applications for water and wastewater facilities,
combination projects or economic development projects seeking State funding to first determine
technical feasibility. If the project is determined to be an appropriate investment of State funds, and
the IIDC has determined the project is eligible for funding assistance from one or more State
infrastructure agencies, the IJDC will make a written recommendation for project funding.
Specifically, the IDC will recommend the kind of funding (loan and/or grant) and the amount and
source of funding which the project sponsor should pursue. Otherwise, the INDC will make a written
recommendation that the project sponsor not seek funding from any State infrastructure agency.

The IIDC consists of eleven voting members, including the Governor or designee as chairman and
executive representation from the Housing Development Fund, Department of Environmental
Protection, Economic Development Authority, WDA, Bureau for Public Health, and Public Service
Commission and four members representing the general public.



Sources of funding for the IJDC, which funding must be allocated 80 percent to water and
wastewater projects and 20 percent to economic development projects, include appropriations,
proceeds from general obligation and revenue bonds, video lottery proceeds, investment earnings and
unrestricted loan repayments.

The WDA is the administrative agency for the IJDC and is fiduciary of the WVIF. The WDA
provides administrative, financial and legal expertise to the I'DC and ongoing servicing on loans
made from the WVIF. The WDA employs four additional individuals for the benefit of the IJDC.
The WDA issues infrastructure revenue and refunding bonds, at the written request of the IIDC, to
provide loans and other forms of financial assistance for infrastructure projects. Of'the $286 million
in infrastructure revenue and refunding bonds issued, including the Chesapeake Bay/Greenbrier
Watershed bonds, $184 million are outstanding,

For additional information on the various programs the WDA administers, visit the WDA’s website
at www.wvwda.org and click on links to access the CWSRF, DWTRF and WVIF.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
West Virginia Water Development Authority
Charleston, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the West Virginia Water Development
Authority (the Authority), a component unit of the State of West Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the Authority's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contaents.

Management’s Responsibliity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prasentation of these financlal statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America; this Includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financlal statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financlal statements. The procedures selected depend on the audltor's judgment, Including the
assessment of the risks of materlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditer considers Internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an oplnion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
contrel. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policles used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit oplnion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, In all material respects, the
financial position of the Authority, as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the management's
dlscussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 and the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension
liabllity and the schedule of contributions to the PERS on pages 32 through 34 be presented to supplement the
baslc financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financlal
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applled certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our Inquirles, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limlted procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated October 23,
2015, on our consideration of the Authority’s Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The pumpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinien en internal control over financial
reporting or on compllance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards In considering Authority's internal control over financlal reporting and
compliance.

4,.4«.»-4 } famesd a.c.

Charleston, West Virginia
October 23, 2015




WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

INTRODUCTION

The West Virginia Water Development Authority (the “Authority”) was established in 1672 by the West
Virginia Legislature as a governmental Instrumentality of the State of Wast Virginia {the “State™) a body
corporate and is considered a component unit of the State for financial reporting purposes. The Authority
commenced operations In 1974 and is authorized to serve as a revenue bond bank that provides financial
assistance to municipalities, public service districts and other political subdivisions to meet the
requirements of State and federal water pollution control and safe drinking water [aws, thereby helping to
protect the health of the State's citizens, improving drinking water quality, upgrading infrastructure to
attract economic development and protecting the environment. The Authority operates under the
supervision of the West Virginla Water Development Board, which Is comprised of seven members. The
Authority, also serves as fiduciary agent for two other programs which are reported separately. The
Authority is self-supporting and does not receive State appropriations for operating expenses or bond

programs.

The Authority maintains a variety of programs te provide long-term, short-term and private-activity
financing at favorable Interest rates for design, construction and/or acquisition of wastewater and/or water
systems. Generally, the Authority's programs are funded with proceeds from water development bonds
issued by the Authority. Moneys in the various programs are loaned to municipalities, public sarvice
districts and other poiitical subdivisions through the purchase of revenue bonds or notes issued by these
local governmental agencies. The loans are repaid from the revenues of the wastewater and/or water
systems or other permanent financing. Because the Authority’s bonds are considered a moral obligation
of the State, the aggregate principal amount of bonds and/or notes issued by the Authority may not
exceed $500 milllion outstanding at any time; provided that before the Authority issues bonds or notes in
excess of $440 million, the Legislature must pass a resclution authorizing this action.

The Authority's long-term planning is accomplished within the confines of Its authorized borrowing limit.
Additionally, the Authority has used and will use other avallable resources to fund loans and Issue bonds
when a significant Identlfiable need arises.

This discusslon and analysis of the Authority's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2015, is
designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues and activities of the Authority and
to identify significant changes in financial poslition. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements, which begin on page 8.

USING THIS REPORT

This report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position report the Authority's net positlon and the
annual changes in net posltion. The Authority's net position, which is the difference between assets and
deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, is one way to measure
the Authority's financial health or financial position.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

+ Total assets of the Authority decreased $5.5 million or 2%. Deferred outflows of resources
decreased by $577 thousand or §%. There was a decrease in total liabilities of $8.8 million or 4%.
Deferred inflows of resources Increased $160 thousand. Total net position Increased $2.5 million
or approximately 4%.

¢ Total revenues decreased $125 thousand or approximately 1%. This was primarily due to a
decrease in charges for services of $147 thousand and a decrease in interest and investment
revenue of $51 thousand, offset by an increase In other revenue of $72 thousand.



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
(Unaudited)

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

s Total expenses decreased $1.5 million or approximately 12%. This was primarily the combined
result of a $739 thousand decrease in interest expense and a $794 thousand decrease in
operating expenses. The decrease In operating expense [s the result of the prior year bond issue
costs of the 2013 Series All bond refunding, and the write off of the insurance premium of the
2003 Series B and 2003 Series D bonds that were refunded In fiscal year 2014, as well as the
deferral of pension expense duse to the implementation of GASB 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions.

THE AUTHORITY A8 A WHOLE
The analysis below focuses on Net Position (Table 1) and Changes In Net Positicn (Table 2):

Table 1
Net Poslition

2015 2014 _Increase

WDA WDA {Decrease)
Asgets
Current assets $ 30678777 § 22494003 $ 8,184,774
Non current assets 230,208,253 244,010,268 (13,712,016)
Total assets $ 260@77,030 $ zseismlzn $ ‘51527@42!

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred loes on bond refundings $ 10,341,589 $ 11,005,887 {$664,208)
Deferred outflows of resources

from pension amounts 87,220 0 87,220
Total deferred outflows of

resources $ 10,428,809 § 11,005,887 § (577,078)
Liabllities

Current liabillties $ 10411714 $ 10,296,276 § 115,439
Net Pension Liability 151,280 0 151,290
Long-term debt outstanding 199,252,815 208,274,712 {9,021, 897)
Total liabilities $ 209,81 5,819 $ 218,570,987 $ (8,755,168)

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred Inflows of resources from

pension amounts $ 160,044 0 s 160,044
Total deferred Inflows of

resources $ 160,044 0 $ 160,044
Net position

Net investment in capital assets 7,156,590 7,532,093 (375,503)
Restricted 24,767,832 25,301,262 (533,430)
Unrestricted 29,505 554 25,105,817 3,389,737

Total net pesition § 61420976 § 58,939,172 § 2,490,804



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
{Unaudited)

THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Total assets decreased $5.5 million or 2%. Decreases to assets were the result of the use of assets to
fund interest expense of $8.6 million on bonds payable, scheduled principal payments on bonds payable
of $7.9 milllion, and general and administrative expenses of $1.6 milien. The decrease to assets were
substantially offset by operating revenues including revenues from interest on revenue bonds receivable
reflected in the financial statements as “charges for services" of $13.8 milllon and interest on investments
of $209 thousand. During the year, the Authorlty disbursed $146 thousand in loans from unrestricted
resources avallable to the authority.

Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased by $577 thousand which was the result of current year
amortizations of loss on refundings and the deferred outflow of resources for pension expense and
pension contributions due to the implementation of GASB 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, which is explained further In Note $.

Total llablliies decreased approximately $8.7 million or 4%. The majority of the decrease was In
revenue bonds payable, which are presented on the balance sheet net of unamortized premiums.

Unrestricted net position increased $3.4 million, primarily explained by the combined result of $5.9
million net income in unrestricted accounts, a $395 thousand transfer from the resfricted portion of
revenue bonds receivable in the four loan programs to cumrent assets, a $120 thousand Increase in
interest receivable. Offsetting these increases was a decrease in revenue bonds receivable of $2.4
million, a transfer from restricted liabilities of $175 thousand for the current portion of revenue bonds
payable and a decrease in assets held on behalf of others of $500 thousand.

Restricted net position decreased $533 thousand primarily due to the transfer of $395 thousand from
the restricted portlon of revenue bonds recelvable to current assets, the transfer of $572 thousand from
the restricted portion of supplemental bonds receivable to current assets, and the net pension liability of
$151 thousand, offset by the transfer of $175 thousand for the current portion of revenue bonds payable a
decrease In the assets held on behalf of others in the amount of $500 thousand, and the deferral of
pension expense of $85 thousand.

Table 2
Changes In Net Positlon

2015 2014 Increase

WDA _WDA (Decrease)
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Charges for sarvices $ 13,759,086 §$ 13,005688 $ (146,602)
Other 300,482 228 460 72,022
Total operating revenues $ 14,059,568 $ 14,134,148 {$74,580)
Nonoperating revenues:
Interest and investment
revenue, net of arbitrage $ 205,864 3 256,560 $ (50,698)
Total revenues $ 14265432 § 14,390,708 $ (125,276)
Expenses:
Operating expenses $ 2874321 $ 3,671,428 $ (797,108)
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense 8,613,036 8,351,809 {738,773)

Total expenses $ 11,487,357 $ 13,023,238 $(1,535,881)




WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
(Unaudited)

THE AUTHORITY AS A WHOLE (Continued)

2015 2014 Increase
WDA WDA (Decrease)
Change in net position 2,778,075 1,367,470 1,410,605
Beginning net position 58,939,172 67,671,702 1,367,470
Cumulative effective of change
in accounting principal (287,271) 0 (287,271)
Beginning net position,
restated 58,651,901 57,671,702 1,080,199
Ending net position $ 61420976 § 58,939,172 § 2,490,804

Charges for services decreased $147 thousand. This Is primarily due to only two loans closing during
the current year of approximately $100 thousand and to lower interest rates on loans already in the
portfolic.

Other increased $72 thousand primarily due to income received from the Infrastructure Jobs and
Develepmant Council for their respective share of building costs.

Interest and Investment revenue, net of arbitrage decreased $51 thousand due to fluctuating short
term interest rates available to the Authority from period to period on comparable asset balances.

Operating expenses decreased $797 thousand from the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to
the write off of bond issue costs and insurance expense related to the 2003 Series B and 2003 Series D
bonds refunded during fiscal year 2014 and the deferral of pension expanse due to the implementation of
GASB 88, Accounfing and Financlal Reporting for Pansions.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As a financing entity, the business of the Authority Is debt issuance and administration, including
servicing. By statute, the maximum amount of bonds the Authority is authorized to have outstanding
includes debt issued for the Authority and by the Authority on behalf of the West Virginia Infrastructure
and Jobs Development Council. While the redemption of bonds is economically prudent because of the
resulting debt service savings, any reduction In the liability for long-term debt enables the Authority to
manage debt capacity for future needs as well as for new programs. The Authority, therefora, continues
to monitor its long-term cutstanding debt for prepayment and refunding opportunities for debt service
savings. At year end, the Authority had $200 million in revenue and refunding bonds outstanding versus
$208 million in the prior year, a decrease of 4%.

As of June 30, 2015, National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation, the bond Insurer for the West
Virginia Water Development Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds (Loan Program II) 2005 Series A-ll and B-lI
and 2006 Series A-ll had a Standard & Poor's rating of AA-.

As of June 30, 2015, the 2012 Serles A-l and B-l, 2012 Serles A-ll and B-ll, 2013 Series A-ll, and 2012 Series
A-lll and B-lll had a Moody's rating of Aa3 and a Fitch rating of AA-.

As of June 30, 2015, Assured Guaranty, the bond insurer for the West Virginia Water Development
Authority, Water Development Revenue Bonds (Loan Program IV} 2005 Series A, had a Standard &
Poor’s rating of AA.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

As of June 30, 2015, the West Virginia Water Development Revenue Bonds (Loan Program IV) 2005 Series B-
IV had a Standard & Poor's rating of A.

The Authority's underlying rating of A from Standard & Poor's reflects the State’s moral obligation, which is one
full category below the State’s AA rating. Ultimately, reting strength s provided by the Authority’s pledge to
maintain a debt service reserve fund equal to the maximum annual debt service on all outstanding bonds and
servicing of underlying loans. If the amount In the reserve funds falls below the required maximum annual debt
service level, the Govemnor, on notification by the Authorlty, may request the State’s Legislature to appropriate
the necessary funds to repienish the reserve to its required level. The State's Legislature, however, Is not legally
required to make such appropriation.

The Authority, as well as its underwriters and bond counsel, continue to monitor the status of its bond insurers.
The 2012 Series of refunding bonds were Issued without an insurance policy.

ECONOMIC FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT THE AUTHORITY

On August 7, 2014, Eari Ray Tomblin, Governor of the State of West Virginia, authorized the Authority to
issue Infrastructure Excess Lottery Revenue Bonds of not more than $120,000,000 in aggregate princlpal
amount in October 2014, The proceeds of the 2014 Series A Bonds (Chesapeake Bay/Greenbrier River
Projects) are being used to finance Chesapeake Bay watershed compliance projects and Greenbrier
River watershed compliance projects. The Infrastructure Excess Lottery Revenue Bonds were issued on
October 28, 2014, in the amount of $75,790,000. These bonds were issued on behalf of the Infrastructure
Fund, with debt service payments to be funded by appropriations from the West Virginia Lottery's Excess
Lottery Fund.

There are several unknown factors that may affect the Authority, including changes in existing federal or
State legislation, additional responsibiiities for new environmental or drinking water demands, and market
conditions that could affect the viability of future revenue bond issues and impact invastment earnings.
Additionally, the Authority invests funds not required for inmediate disbursement as permitted by: statute,
its bond resolutions and Its “Investment Guidelines, Procedures and Controls.” The Authority's investment
income was affected during the current year by a continued decline In short-term interest rates.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the
Authority's accountability for the maney it recelves as well as its abllity to pay debt service. If you have
questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Executive Director or Chief
Financial Officer, West Virginia Water Development Authority, 1009 Bullitt Street, Charleston, West
Virginla 25301, call 304-414-8500; or visit the Authority's website (www.wvwda.org).



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Revenue bonds, net of unamortized discount of $49,345
Supplemental revenue bonds
Interest
Administrative fees
Due from other agencies

Total unrestricted cumrent assets

Restricted current assets:
Prepald insurance
Investments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Revenue bonds
Asset held on behalf of others
Investments
Capital assets, net

Total unrestricted noncurrent assets

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:
Revenue bonds, net of unamortized discount of $978,354
Supplemental revenue bonds
Prepaid insurance

Total rastricted noncument assets
Total assets

DEFERRED

Deferred loss on bond refundings
Deferred outflows of resources from pension amounts

Total deferred outfiows of resources

$ 16,153,702

6,916,467
672,511
3,457,241
1,808

250,685

27,362,412

20,272
3,306,093
30,878,777

10,864,856
500,000
1,200,000

7,156,590
19,721,446

12,894,866

181,257,957
5,942,187

481,827
210,576,807

$ 260,677,030

10,341,589
87,220
$ 10428808

(Continued)



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(Continued)

June 30, 2015

LI S
Current liabliities:
Accounts payable $ 168,106
Current portion of revenue bends payable, including
unamortized net premium of $502,262 8,537,262
Accrued interest payable 1,686,346
Total current liabilities 10,411,714

Noncurmrent liabllities:

Accrued employee benefits 251,265
Asset held on behalf of others 500,000
Net pension liability 151,290

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:
Noncurrent portion of revenue bonds payable, including

unamortized net premium of $6,741,550 198,501,550
Total noncurrent liabilities 189,404,105
Total liabilities $ 209815819

DEFERRED S OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows of resources from pensicn amounts $ 160,044

NET POSIT!

Restricted 24,767,832
Unrestricted 29,505,554
Net investment in capital assets 7,156,580
Total net position $ 61429976

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statemsents.
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating revenues:

Charges for sarvices $ 13,759,086
Miscellaneous 300,482
Total operating revenuas 14,059,568

Operating expenses:

Depreciation and amortization 1,250,516
General and administrative 1,623,805
Total operating expenses 2,874,321
Operating income 11,185,247

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest and investment revenue 205,864
Interest expense {8,613,036)
Total nonoperating expenses (8,407,172)
Change in net position 2,778,075

Total net position, beginning of year 58,939,172
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (287,271)

Total net posltion, beginning of year, as restated 58,661,901

Total net position, end of year 681,429,976

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts of principal on honds receivable
Receipts of interest on bonds receivable
Receipts of administrative fees on bonds receivable
Receipts of reimbursements from other agencies
Disbursements from issuance of bonds recelvable
Disbursements of general and administrative expense
Disbursements on behalf of employees
Disbursements on behalf of other agencles

Net cash provided by cperating activities

Cash flows from caplital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal paid on revenue and refunding bonds
Interest paid on revenue and refunding bonds

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from investing activitles:
Purchase of invesments
Investment eamings
Net cash used in investing activities

Net Increase in cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income '
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense
Pension expense
Changes in operating accounts:
Due from other agencies
Supplemental revenue bonds receivable
Revenue bonds receivable
Accrued interest receivable

11

$ 9,216,691
13,641,088
300,617
997,997
(1486,045)
(1,029,311)
(662,903)

—(370.000)
21 7

(854,738)

(7,875,000)
(8,483,768)
(16,368,788)

(1,774,072)
204,072

(1,670,000
3,154,573

26,468,537

$ 20823110
$ 11,185,247
1,250,519
18,829

34,572
572,511

8,498,134
(117,988)

{Continued)



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Adminstrative fees recelvable

Accounts payable

Accrued employee benefits

Deferred outflows of resources due to pension contributions

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

135
(1,792)
15,366
(81,988)

$ 21373537
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - REPORTING ENTITY

The West Virginia Water Development Authority (the Authority) is a governmental Instrumentality
of the State of West Virginia (the State) and a body corporate, created under the provisions of
Chapter 22C, Article 1 of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended, and known as the West
Virginla Water Development Act. The Authority's mission is to provide West Virginia communities
effactlve financial assistance for development of wastewater, water and economic infrastructure that
will improve heaith, protect the streams of the State, improve drinking water quality and encourage
economic growth. This Is accomplished by administering and managing the West Virginia Water
Development Revenue Bond Programs, serving as the State-designated fiduciary of the West Virginia
Infrastructure Fund, managing the Bureau for Public Health’s Drinking Water Treatment Revolving
Fund, administering the Department of Environmental Protection's Clean Water State Revolving
Fund, and being an active member of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council.

The Authority’s Watar Development Revenue Bond Programs are funded with pracesds of water
development bonds issued by the Authecrity. Moneys in the programs are loaned {o municipalities,
public service districts and other political subdivisions through the purchase by the Authority of
revenue bonds or notes [ssued by those entities, who repay the loans from the revenues of the
systems or other permanent financing.

The Authority recelves no appropriations from the State; however, as the State is able to impose
its will over the Authority, the Authority is considered a component unlt of the State.

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit In the
reporting entity is made by applying the criteria set forth in accounting principles generally accepted
(GAAP) in the United States of America for governments. GAAP defines component units as those
entities which are legally separate govemmental organizations for which the appointed members of
the Authority are financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance
of their relationship with the Authority are such that exclusion would cause the Authority's financial
statements to be misleading. Because no such organizations exist which meet the above criterla, the
Autherity has no component units.

2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The Authority is accounted for as a proprietary fund special purpose government engaged in
business type activities. In accordance with GAAP, the financial statements are prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting, using the flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under this
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when
Incurred.

The Authority is included in the State’s financial statements as a discretely presented component
unit proprietary fund and buginess type activity. There may be differences between the amounts
reported in these financlal statements and the financial statements of the State as a result of major
fund determination.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of less than ninety days.
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHCRITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 = SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
nce for Uncollectible Loang an Vi es

The Autherity established an allowance for uncollectible revolving ioans and service charges
based on the estimated age of revolving loans and service charges and their anticipated collectability.
The Authority has not established an allowance for uncollectible loans in the Water Development
Revenue Bond Programs because of remedies available to it in the loan agreements that exist
between the Authority and the various entities.

Investments

Investments are camied at fair market value which is based upon quoted market prices. Gains
and losses are reported as a component of investment income.

Rasgtrictad Assets

Proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by bond covenants.
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is generally the Authority's
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-
line method over an estimated econemic useful life. The table below detalls the capltal asset
categories and related economic useful lives for assets In excess of $1,000 with useful lives In axcass
of 1 year.

Fumiture and equipment 5 years

Building 40 years

Bullding improvements 10 years

Intangible assets 5 years
Accrued Employee Benefits

In accordance with State policy, the Authority permits employees to accumulate earned but
unused vacation and sick pay benefits. A llability for vacation pay is accrued when eamed. To the
extent that accumulated sick leave is expected to be converted to benefits on retirement, an
estimated liability is accrued through the Authority's participation in the State’s multiple employer
cost-sharing other post employment benefit plan that represents billed and unpaid charges from that
plan.

B miums, Discoun nd | 0

Bond premiums and discounts are amortized using the straight-line method over the varying
terms of the bonds issued. The stralght-line method is not in accordance with GAAP, but the
difference in amortization using the stralght-line method, versus the effective interest method which Is
in ascordance with GAAP, Is not material to the financia! statements as a whole. Bond Issuance costs
are expensed as incurred.



15

WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Arbitrage Rebate Payable

The United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code"), prescribes
restrictions applicable to the Authority as issuer of Water Development Revenue and Refunding
Bonds. Among those include restrictions on eamings on the bond proceeds. The Code requires
payment to the federal govemment of investment eamings on certain bond proceeds in excess of the
amount that would have been earned if the proceeds were invested at a rate equal to the yield on the
bonds. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority is not liable to the federal govemment as a result of
arbitrage.

D R 1D Infl R

The statement of net position reports a separate financial statement element called deferred
outflows of resources. This financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period and so will nof be recognized as an outflow of resourcas (expense) untll that
time. The Authority reporis logses on bond refunding as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
outflows of resources related to pensions.

The statement of net position reports a separate financial statement element called deferred
inflows of resources. This financlal statement element reprasents an acquisition of net positien that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The Authority reports deferred Inflows of resources related to pensions.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferrad outflows of resources and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and penslon expense, Information about the fiduciary net position of
the West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from
PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee coniributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at falr value.

Net Positi

Net position Is presented as unrestricted, restricted, or as the net investment in capital assets.
The net Investment in capital assets consists of all capital assets, less accumulated depreciation.
Restricted net position represents assets restricted for the repayment of bond proceeds, by bond
covenants, or for retirement of other long term obligations. All remaining net position is consldered
unrestricted. When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position is available, restricted resources are applied first.



18

WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

3 - CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Effective July 1, 2014, the Authorlty adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No.
68. The Authority determined that it was not practical to restate all periods presented and has
recorded the cumuiative effect of the decrease to beginning net position of implementing this change
of $287,271 as of July 1, 2014, which Is the net penslon liability of $369,257 less deferred outflows of
resources related to pension plan contributions of $81,986 as of that date. The Authority further
determined that it was not practical to determine the amounts of all deferred Infiows of resources and
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions as of July 1, 2014 and these amounts are not
reported.

4 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES

The General Revenue Bond Resolutions and the Authority's investment guidelines authorize the
Authority to Invest all bond proceeds in obligations of the United States and certain of its agencies,
certificates of deposit, public housing bonds, direct and general obligations of states which are rated
In either of the two highest categories by Standard & Poor’s Corporation, advance-refunded municipal
bonds and repurchase agreements relating to certain securities. Investments are managed by the
financlal institutions serving as trustees for the Authority.

Interest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2015, the Authority had the following investments and maturities:

|Investment Maturities (in Y

Type Fajr Value _Less Than 1 1-5 6-10
Repurchase agreements $ 793383 % 793383 § -8 -
U.S. Treasury 3,712,700 - 3,712,700 -
Money markets 28,787,757 2 57 - -

£33.202.800 § 20681.150 $3712700 § -

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the
Authority’s investment guidelines limit the maturitles of investments not matched to a specific debt or
obligation of the Authority to five years or less, unless otherwise approved by the Board.

Investments matched to obligations of the Authority would include investments of capltal and
special reserve funds for each of the Authority's outstanding bond Issues in Loan Programs |, Il and
lIl. The General Revenue Bond Resolutions for Loan Programs |, I, lil and IV require that, while the
bonds are outstanding, there be on deposit in the capital and special reserve funds an amount equal
to the maximum amount of principal installments and interest coming due during the current or any
succeeding year. The General Revenue Bond Resolution for Loan Program IV pemmits this
requirement to be met, and it has been met, with the deposit of a Reserve Fund Credit Facility into
the reserve fund. There are, therefore, no investments of capital and special reserve funds for Loan
Program IV. The Authority has both the intent and the abllity to hold long-term securities until final
maturity and thus is limited in its exposure to interest rate risk on these long-term obligations.
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

4 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Concentration of Cradit Risk

As of June 30, 2015, the Authorify had investment balances with the following issuers which are
greater than or equal to 5 percent of the investment balance:

Percentage of
Type Issyer Investments _
Money Markets Federated Prime Cash Obligations 86%

The Authority's investment guidellnes manage concentration of credit risk by limiting its
investment activity so that at any time its total Investment portfolio will not exceed the percentage
limits as to the permitted investments as follows:

Maximum %
Pemmitted Investments of Portfollo

(a) Diract Federal Obligations 100%
(b) Federally Guaranteed Obligations 100%
(¢) Federal Agency Obligations 80%
{d) Money Markets 80%
{e) Repurchase Agresments/investment

Contracts 20%
()  Time Deposlts/Certificates of Deposit 90%
{g) Demand Deposits 30%
(h) Corporate Obligations 16%
()  COther State/l.ocal Obligations 15%
()  West Virginia Obligations 16%
{k) Housing Bonds - Secured by Annual

Confributions Contracts 5%

With the exception of money markets, repurchase agreements/invesiment contracts, time
deposits/certificates of deposit and demand deposits, investments that comprise more than 15% of
the investment portfolio must be direct federal, federal agency or federally guaranteed obligations.

All other [nvestments listed above that comprise more than 16% of the investment portfollo must
be elther provided by an institution with a rating of at least A/A by Moody's and/or Standard and
Poor's, invested in a money market fund rated AAAmM or AAAmM-G or better by Standard and Poor’s,
secured by obligations of the United States, or not exceed the insurance limits established by the
FDIC unless adequate collateral is provided.
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
Credit Risk

The following table provides information on the credit ratings of the Authority's short-term
investments as of June 30, 2015:

Standard &
Security Type Fitch Moody's Pocrs Fafr Value
Money Markets AAAMmMf Aaa-mf AAAm $ 28,787,754

Additionally, at June 30, 2015, the Authority’s investments in repurchase agresments, includes
underlying securities of $793,393 in federal agency obligations backed by the full falth and credit of
the United States.

Cradit risk with investment of bond proceeds is managed by the limitation on investment of those
proceeds in the following types of debt securities in accordance with the Authority's investment
guidellnes and the authorizing General Revenue Bond Resclution: Government obligations,
obligations of certain federal agencies, either representing the full faith and credit of the United States
of America or which are rated Aaa-mf by Moody’s and AAAm by Standard and Poor's, certain types
of commercial paper, advance-refunded municipal bonds, certain general obligations of the State of
West Virginla or any other state, or other forms of investments approved in writing by the applicabie
bond insurer, if any.

Accordingly, the credit risk with the investment of cash assets other than bond proceeds, known
as "other revenues,” is managed by the limitation on investment of other revenues in the following
types of debt securities in accordance with the Authority’s investment guidelines: direct obligations of
or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, the State of West Virginla or any other
state, provided that obligations of other states meet certain requirements, obligations of certain
federal agencies, certain types of indebtedness of public agencles or municipalitles, corporate
indebtedness meeting certain requirements or any other debt security investment permitted with bond
proceeds.

Custodial Credit Rigk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

Repurchase agreements are collateralized at 100% if the underlying securlty is cash and between
103% and 125% for other types of securities backed by the full faith and credit of the United States
Government. The underlying securities of the Authority’s $7983,393 in repurchase agreements are
held by elther a third-party custodian or by the Authority’s trustee, in the name of the Trustee con
behalf of the Authority.
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WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
Custodial Credit Rigk (Continued)

The Authority’s investment guidelines put certaln restrictions on repurchase agreements,
including the following: the Authority can only enter Into repurchase agreements with financial
institutions having a credit rating of at least A/A; collateral is limited to direct federal, federally
guaranteed or federal agency obligations; ccllateral is required to ba delivered to a third-party
custodlan, the Authority or the frustee; and, the financial institution must guarantee the aggregate
market value of the collateral will equat or exceed the outstanding repurchase agreement by the
margin specified in the respective repurchase agreement. As of June 30, 2015, the Authority held no
repurchase agreements that were not fully collateralized.

Cash conslsted of the following at June 30, 2015:

Operating cash on hand $ -
Cash on deposit with State Treasurer 260.811
Total 3 260.811

The Authority has no securities that are subject to foreign currency risk.

A reconciliation of the amounts disclosed as cash and investments included in this Note to cash
and cash equivalents, restrictad cash and cash equivalents, and investments In the Statement of Net
Assets as of June 30, 2015, is as follows:

Deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents as reported on the
Statement of Net Position $ 16,153,702
Add: restricted cash and cash equivalents 12,894,866
Less: cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents
disclosed as investments _(28,787.757)
Total cash as disclosed in this Note § 260811
Investments:
Investments as reported on the Statement of Net Posltion $ 1,200,000
Add: restricted investments 3,306,093
Add: cash equivalents and restricted cash equivalents
disclosed as Investments 28.787 757

Total Investments as disclosed in this Note $_33,293.850
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6 - DUE FROM OTHER AGENCIES

{Continued)
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Certain agencles of the State were indebted to the Authority at June 30, 2015, in connection with
services performed by the Authority on behalf of the agencies. Amounts due the Authority at June 30,

2015, are as follows:

West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs

Development Counell, net

Department of Environmental Protection
Clean Water State Revolving Fund

Bureau for Public Health

Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund

6 - REVENUE BONDS RECEIVABLE

$ 194684
9,673

46,330
£...200,687

As of June 30, 2015, the face value of revanue bonds of municipalities, public service districts
and other political subdivisions purchased with proceeds from Water Development Revenue Bonds
was $198,786,491. Management's intentions are to hold such bonds until maturty; therefore,
management believes the face amount of the bonds is fully collectible.

Although not required, the Authority purchased supplemental bonds of municlpalities and public
service disfricts using other avallable funds.

7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreclated:

Land
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Fumiture and equipment
Building

Total capital assets, being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniturs and equipment
Building

Total accumulated depraciation

Total capital assets, net

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Dlsposals Balance
$ 514884 § - § - § 514684
5,388,955 854,738 - 6,243,603
4,100,288 - 4,100,298
9,489 253 854,738 - 10,343,091
2,273,596 1,127,734 - 3,401,330

198,248 102,507 300,755
2471844 1,230,241 - 3,702,085
$ 7532003 § (375503) ¢ - § 7158590
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8 - REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

The following is a summary of the Authority’s bond transactions for the year ended June 30,
2015:

Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2014 $ 207,670,000
Bonds retired during the year ended June 30, 2015 (7.875,000)
Revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2015 $199.785.000

Revenue and refunding bonds outstanding at June 30, 2015, were as follows:

Serieg Final Maturity Interest Rates % Balance
2005 AV 11/01/44 4.000-5.000 33,385,000
2005 All 11/01/33 3.500-5.000 13,835,000
2005 Bl 11/01/33 3.500-5.000 9,780,000
2005 BV 11/01/44 4,000-5.125 10,065,000
2008 All 11/01/38 3.750-5.000 34,005,000
2012 Al 11/01/25 2.000-3.000 3,385,000
2012 BI 11/01/26 3.000-4.500 14,080,000
2012 All 11/01/23 2.000-3.000 5,035,000
2012 Bl 11/01/33 2.000-4.000 13,530,000
2012 Alll 07101739 3.000-4.000 15,490,000
2012 Bl 07/01/40 2.000-3.750 9,420,000
2013 All 11/01/29 2.000-5.000 37,685,000
169,765,000

Loan Program | includes Series 2012 Al and 2012 Bl Water Development Revenue Refunding
Bonds. Loan Program Il includes Series 2013 All Water Development Revenue Refunding Bonds,
and Series 2012 All, 2012 BIl, Serles 2005 All, 2005 Bll and 2006 All Water Developmant Revenue
Refunding Bonds. Loan Program Ill includes Series 2012 Alll and 2012 Bill Water Development
Revenue Refunding Bonds. Loan Program IV includes Series 2005 AIV and 2005 BIV Water
Development Revenue Bonds.
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8 - REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Total future maturities of bond princlpal and interest on Authority indebtedness at June 30, 2015,
are as follows:

Loan Program |
Principal Interest Total
11/0115 $ 1,480,000 L 638,775 $ 2118775
1110116 1,525,000 593,700 2,118,700
110117 1,570,000 539,775 2,108,775
11/01/18 1,635,000 476,383 2,111,363
11/0119 1,240,000 417,225 1,857,225
7,450,000 2,665,838 10,115,838
11/01/20-11/01/24 6,885,000 1,276,044 8,270,044
11/01/25-11/01/26 3,020,000 116,860 3,136,869
10,015,000 1,391,913 11,408.913
$ 17485000 $& 4057751 §$ 21 522,751
Loan Program I
Principal Interest Total

11/01/15 § 5080000 § 4842744 §$ 9,702,744
11/0118 5,230,000 4,458,487 9,688,487
110117 5,430,000 4,266,287 8,696,297
11/01118 5,815,000 4,094,468 8,700,468
11/01/19 5,470,000 3,806,681 9 378,681
26,805,000 21,368,675 48,173,875
11/01/20-11/01/24 26,800,000 15,426,369 42,226,369
11/01/26-11/01/29 31,805,000 10,122,828 42,027,828
11/01/30-11/01/34 18,385,000 4,000,887 23,385,887
11/01/35-11/01/38 9,075,000 1,125,875 10,200,875
87,165,000 30,875,758 117,840,756

$ 113870000 $ 62044433 § 166,014,433



Loan Program i

07101115
07/0116
070117
07/01118
0710118

07/01/20-07/01/24
07/01/25-07/01/29
07/01/30-07/01/34
07/01/35-07/01/39
7111940

Loan Program IV

11/01/15
11/01116
1101117
11/01118
1110119

11/01/20-11/01/24
11/01/25-11/01/28
11/01/30-11/01/34
11/01/35-11/01/38
11/01/40-11/01/44

Total all loan programs
Add: unamortized net premium

Total all programs, net
Less: current portion

Noncurrent portion

WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

8 - REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

Principal Interest Total
$ 635,000 $ 850808 § 1,494,806
655,000 842,931 1,497,931
675,000 823,406 1,498,408
700,000 799,756 1,499,758
720,000 773,981 1,483,981
3,385,000 4,099,880 7,484,880
4,020,000 3,457,931 7,477,931
4,725,000 2,749,678 7474878
5,570,000 1,866,344 7,436,344
6,675,000 744,094 7,419,094
535,000 10,031 545031
21,525,000 8,828,078 30,353 078
$ 24,510,000 $ 120279058 § 37837958

Principal Interest Total
$ 860,000 ¢ 2109613 § 2,969,813
895,000 2,072,881 2,967,881
935,000 2,029,781 2,964,781
©80,000 1,981,509 2,961,508
1,030,000 1,930,844 2,960,844
4,700,000 10,124,628 14,824,628
5,830,000 8,845,550 14,775,559
6,825,000 7,310,983 14,135,063
8,495,000 5,453,269 13,948,268
8,030,000 3,347,708 11,377,708
9,470,000 1,231,488 10,701,488
38,750,000 26,188,985 84,938 985
43 450,000 § 383136813 $ 79763813

$ 189,705,000
7,243,812

207,038,812

8,537,262

$ 198,501,550

23
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(Continued)

8 - REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)

The Authority has defeased certaln revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Accordingly,
the trust accounts’ assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the Authority's
financial statements. At June 30, 2015, there are $2,520,000 in defeased bonds outstanding.

The proceeds from the Authority's Revenue Bond Program provide flnancial assistance to
municipalities, public servica districts and other public subdivisions to meet the requirements of state
and federal water poliution control and safe drinking water laws, All bonds are considered a moral
obligation of the state of West Virginia. All assets of the Authority except capital assets have been
pledged to fulfill the commitments of the bonds over the life of the debt. Principal and interest paid on
bends payable for the year ended June 30, 2015 was $7,875,000 and $8,613,036 respectively and
principal payments and interest received on pledged notes receivable were $9,266,037 and
$13,653,562, respectively, at June 30, 2015.

9 - PENSION PLAN
Plan Description

The Authority contributes to the PERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB). PERS covers
substantially all employees of the State and its component units, as well as employees of participating
non-state governmental entities who are not participants of another state or municlpal system.
Benefits under PERS include retirement, death and disabllity benefits, and have been established
and may be amended by action of the State Legislature. The CPRB issues a publicly available
financial report that includes flnancial statements for PERS that may be obtained at
www.wvretirement.com.

Benefits Provided

PERS provides retirement benefits as weil as death and disability benefits. Qualification for
normal retirement is age 60 with five years of service or at least age 55 with age and service equal to
80 or greater. The straight-life annuity retirement benefit Is equivalent to 2% of average salary
multiplied by years of service. Average salary is the average of the highest annual compensation
during any period of three consecutive years within the last fifteen years of eamings. Terminated
members with at least five years of contributory service who do not withdraw their accumulated
contributions may elect to receive their retirement annuity beginning at age 62.

Contributions

Although contributions are not actuarially determined, actuarial valuations are performed to assist
the Legislature in establishing appropriate contribution rates. Current funding policy requires
contributions, conslsting of member contributions of 4.5% of covered payroll and employer
contributions of 14.0%, 14.5%, and 14.0% for the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, the Authority's contributions to PERS
required and made were approximately $81,988, $72,509, and $62,525, respectively.
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9 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Relaled to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the Authority reported a liability of $151,280 for lts proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension lability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of Juna 30, 2013, rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2014, The Authority's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Authority's share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the contributions of all employers participating in PERS for the year ended
June 30, 2014. At June 30, 2014, the Authority's proportion was 0.040945 percent, which was a
decrease of 0.000749 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013,

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority recognized pension expense of $18,828. At June
30, 2015, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred Inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferrad
QOutflows of Inflows of
-Resources =~ _Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ - 3 160,044
Changes In proportion and differences between
the Authority's contributions and proportionate share
of contributions 5,234 -
The Authority's contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date of June 30, 2014 g1e86 ____ -
Total $ 67220 §___160.044

$81,986 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Autherity’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred
oufflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pengion expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2016 $ (38,412)
2017 (38,412)
2018 (38,412)

2019 (38,574)
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9 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)
Actuarial Assumplions

The total pension llabliity in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inffation 2.2 percent
Salary increases 4.25 - 6.0 parcent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of retum 7.5 percent, net of penslon plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the 1983 GAM for healthy males, 1671 GAM for healthy females,
1971 GAM for disabled males, and Revenue Ruling 96-7 for disabled females.

The actuarlal assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2008.

The long-term expected rate of retumn on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined te produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetlc real rates of return for each major
asset class are summarized In the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

— AssetClags ~  __ Allocation =~ __RealRateof Refurn
Fixed Income 15.0% 29-48%
Domastic equity 27.5% 7.6%
International equity 27.5% 8.5%

Real estate 10.0% 8.8%

Private equity 10.0% 9.9%

Hedge funds 10.0% 5.0%

Total —l00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will continue to be made at
statutorlly required rates, which are determined annually based on actuarial valuations. Based on
those assumptions, the penslon plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. Although discount rates are subject to change
between measurement dates, there were no changes in the discount rate in the current period.
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8 - PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Sensitivily of the Authorily's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rale

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well as what the Authority's proportionate share of the net
pension liabllity would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower
or one-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease Cumrent Discount 1% Increase

{6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
Authority’s proportionats share of
the net pension liability (assef) $ 427,496 § 151,280 § {84,061)

10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan cription

The Authority participates in the West Virginia Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan of
the West Virginia Retiree Health Benefit Trust Fund, a multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit
postemployment healthcare plan administered by the West Virginia Public Employees Insurance
Agency (WVPEIA). The OPEB Plan provides retiree postemployment health care benefits for
particlpating state and local govemment employers. The provisions of the Code of West Virginia,
1931, as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the WVPEIA
board of trustees. The WVPEIA issues a publicly available financlal report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary Information for the OPEB Flan. That report may be obtained
by calling 1-888-680-7342 or by writing to:

Public Employses Insurance Agency
601 57" Street, SE, Suite 2
Charleston, West Virginla 25304-2345

Funding Policy

The Code requires that the OPEB Plan bill the participating employers 100% of the annual
required contribution (ARC}, an amount actuarally determined in accordance with GAAP. The ARC
represents a leve! of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excaess) of the plan over a period not
to exceed thirty years. State of West Virginia plan employers are billed per active health policy, per
month.

The Authority's contributions to the trust fund for the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013
were $154, $0, and $1,602, respectively, and the bllled ARC's were $18,448, $6,788, and $6,647.
The Authority’s contributions represent 0.8%, 0.0%, and 24% of the ARC for the years then ended,
respectively. These amounts were transferred to the OPEB Plan which resulted in acerued employee
benefits of $198,554 and $182,262, respectively, which are included In the Authority’s liabilities as of
June 30, 2015 and 2014.
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11 - GENERAL AND ADMINISRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expanses for the year ended June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Personal services $ 596,283
Legal 55,436
Professional 278,550
Trustee 45,150
Employee benefits 51,401
Public employees insurance 48,225
Office supplles/printing 65,712
Advertising 4 831
Repairs and maintenance 175,059
Travel 40,048
Utilities 31,081
Telecommunications 47,824
Vehicle 2,800
Payroll taxes 9,114
Computer supplles/services 83,375
Janitorial 30,000
Miscellaneous 14,750
Rental 16,203
Administrative 3,164
Insurance 3,603
Tralning and development 11,218

3.1.623.800

12 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and natural
disasters.

The Authority has obtained coverage for job-related injurles of employees and health coverage
for its employees through its participation in 8 commercial ingurance provider and the WVPEIA. In
exchange for the payment of premiums to the commercial insurance provider and WVPEIA, the
Autherity has transferred its risk related te job-related injuries and health coverage for employees.

The Authority participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management to
obtain coverage for general llability, property damage, business interruption, errors and omissions,
and natural disasters. Coverage Is offered in exchange for an annual premium. There were no
changes In coverage or claims in excess of coverage for the year ended June 30, 2015.

13 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, which
provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financlal reporting purposes. This
statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certaln investments and disclosures
related to all fair value measurements. The provisions of this Statement are effectlve for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Authority's management has not
determined the effect, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.
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13 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (Continued)

The GASB has issued three statements relating to accounting and financial reporting for penslon
and postemployment benefit plans: Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pansions and Relaled Assels That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments fo Cerlain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 88 and Statement No. 75,
Accounting end Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The
provisions of Statement No. 73 are effective for financial statements for perlods beglinning after June
15, 2016, and the provisions of Statement No. 75 are effective for pericds beginning after June 15,
2017. The Authority's management has not determined the effect, if any, these statements will have
on its financial statements.

The GASBE has issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Govemments, which [dentifies the hierarchy of generally accepted
accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governments. This
statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hisrarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for State and Local Governmenis. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The Authority's management has not
determined the eifect, If any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

14 - COMMITMENT

©n October 15, 2015, the Authority's Board of Directors authorlzed the current refunding of the
2005 Series A-il bonds in the amount of $13,595,000, the 2005 Series B-1l bonds In the amount of
$9,450,000, and the 2006 Series A-ll bonds in the amount of $33,210,000 through Issuance of the
2015 Series A-ll bonds in an amount not to exceed $59,000,000. On that date the Board also
authorized the current refunding of the 2005 Series A-IV bonds in the amount of $32,805,000 and the
2005 Serlas B-IV bonds in the amount of $8,785,000 through issuance of the 2015 Series A-IV bonds
in an amount not to exceed $45,000,000. The issuance of the bonds is subject to market conditions,
certain other conditions, and the approval of other State of West Virginia govemment agencies. The
refunding of the above bonds Is being considered to provide significant debt service savings.

15 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

The presentation of segment information for the Authority, which follows, and conforms with
GAAP is comprised of the following segments:

Loan Program | includes Series 2012 Al and 2012 Bl Water Development Revenue Refunding
Bonds. Loan Program Il includes Series 2013 All Water Development Revenue Refunding Bonds,
2012 All, 2012 BIl, 2005 All, 2005 Bll and 2008 All Water Development Revenue Refunding Bonds.
Loan Program Il includes Sarles 2012 Alll and 2012 BIll Water Development Revenue Refunding
Bonds. Loan Program IV includes Series 2005 AIV and 2005 BIV Water Development Revenue
Bonds.
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16 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ASSETS

Current - unrestrictad

Neoncurent - unrestricted
Restricted - current and noncurment
Capltal asssfs, net

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources related 1o pension
Deferred lose on bond refundings

Total deferred outfiows
LIABILITIES
Current
Long-term
Totel lablities

Deferred Inflows of resources related to psnsion

NET POSITION
Restricted
Unrestricted
Investment In capital assets

Total net position
Charges for services and miscellansous revenue

Depreclation and amortization
General and administrative
Allocation of general and administrative

QFERATING INCOME

Intorest and Investment revenue
Intarest expanse

Transfers (nef)
Change In net position

Beginning net posltion, as reatated

Ending net position

Net cash provided by {(used In):

Operating activitas

Capltal and related financing activities

Noncaplial financing activities

Investing activities

Beginning cash and cash equivalents, as reclassified

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Loan Program |  Loan Program Il Loan Program Il
$ 1696713 § 8375438 § 570,077
10,448,088 117,741,853 27,244 573

3 21145899 § 124,117,089 $ 27,814,850
$ 28609859 § 7106630 § 374,000
i 2860859 § 7,108,630 $ 374,000
$ 1774254 $ 6,123,883 § 1,080,038
17,867,745 112,638,148 24,526,316

$_ 18641908 § 118762020 § 25608354
$ - § - § -
$ 4442200 $ 12210137 $ 3,080,257
{77.540) 251,553 (500,961)

$ 43640660 $ 12461680 § 2580206
§ 1,507,527 § 7.881005 $ 1,570,461
- 11,981 -

. 20 -

141,180 845688 185,610
1,458,337 7,023,338 1,384,851
303 50,326 208

(744 503) {4,689,734) (872,414)
(1,028,327) (2,154,439) 185,812
(314,180) 29,489 668,347
4,678,850 12,432 201 1,681,949

$ 4364880 § 12481800 § 2,550,208
$ 1637964 5 4515437 § 1,068,492
(2,117,500) (6,060,364) (1,508,332)

304 (1,723,747) 291
2,825,757 9,855,553 3,646,007

$ 2,146,525

$ 6886870

$§ 4108548
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15 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
ASSETS

Current - unrestricted

Noncurrent - unrestricted
Restricied - currant and noncurrent
Capitel assets - net

Total asssts

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension
Defarred loss on bond refundings

Total deferred outflows

Current
Long-term
Total Habllities

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Inflows of resouces related to penalon

NET POSITION
Restricted
Unrestrictad
Investment In capltal assets

Total net position
Charges for services and miscellanecus revanue

Depreciation and amertization
General and administrativa
Allocation of general and administrative

OPERATING INCOME

Interest and Investment revenue
Interest axpense

Transfers (net)
Change In net position

Beginning net position, as restated
Ending net position

Net cash provided by (used In):
Operating activites

Capital and related financing activities
Noncapital financing activiiles
Investing activities

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Ending cash and cash equivalents

{Continued)
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Loan Program IV _ Supplemental Total
$ 147108 § 17,239,080 § 27352412
= 12,564,856 12,564,856
43,525,807 5,942,153 213,803,172
- 7,156,590 7,158,590
$§ 44008013 § 420802878 § 260,877,030
$ - 8 87220 $§ 87,220
- - 10,341,589
3 - 5 87,220 $ 10428808
$§ 1245434 § 188,105 $ 10,411,714
43,467,344 002 554 189,404,105
$ 44712778 $ 1080650 $ 200815810
$ - 8 160,044 § 160,044
$ 58,483 § 4,988,776 § 24,767,832
225,672 29,615,830 20,505,554
- 7,156,590 7,156,560
5 284135 § 41739195 § 61420078
§ 2263580 § 746995 § 14,050,588
8,314 1,230,241 1,250,518
- 1,623,785 1,623,805
334,422 (1,508,810 -
1,820,844 (800,121) 11,185,247
40 154,807 205,884
(2,108,385) - (8,813,038)
186,201 2,808,873
780 2,363,640 2,778,075
283,355 38,375,548 58,851,801
$ 284135 §$ 41736185 §$ 81,420078
$ 2,869,793 § 10,351,851 § 21,373,537
- (854,738) (854,738)
(2,967,818) (3,716,953) {16,368,768)
40 153,112 (1,570,000)
122 296 10,118,834 28,488 537
$ 54610 $ 18,052108 § 20,048568
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THE WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Public Employees Retirement System Plan

Year Ended June 30,
2016
Authority's proportion (percentage) of the net pension liability 0.0450093%
Autherlty's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 151,280
Authority's covered employse payroll $ 507,753
Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of Its covered employee payroll 29.796%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liabllity 93.98%

Note: All amounts presented are as of the measurement date, which is
ong year prior to the fiscal year end date.

See Independent Auditor's Report and accompanying Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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Year Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2013

Statutorily required contribution $ 81,988 $ 7259 $ 62525
Contributions In relation to the statutorily

required contribution $ (81,986) § (725699) §$ (82,525)

Centribution deficiency (excess) - - -

Authority's covered employee payroll $ 587,420 $ 507,753 § 463,946
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 14.00% 14.30% 13.48%

See Independent Auditor's Report and accompanying Note to Required Supplementary Information.



WEST VIRGINIA WATER DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1 - TREND INFORMATION PRESENTED

The accompanying schedules of the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability
and contributions to PERS are required supplementary information to be presented for 10 years.
However, untll a full 10 year trend Is compiled, information is presented in the schedules for those
years for which information Is available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
West Virginia Water Development Authority
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to flnancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the West Virginla Water
Development Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements which collectively comprise the Autherity's basic financial statements, and have
iasued our report thereon dated October 23, 2015.

Internal CGontrol over Financlal Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of exprassing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s intemnal control.

A deficiency in intemal control existe when the design or operation of a control does not allow
managemaent or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficlency, or a combinaticn of
deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Fund's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficlencies, in intemnal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal contrel was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficlencies In internal control that might be material weaknesses
or signlficant deficlencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deflciencles in
Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been Identifled.

Compliance and Other Matters

Ag part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’'s financlal statements are free
from materlal misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objsctive of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

shandi<cpas.com
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control
or on compllance. This report is an integral part of an audit preformed in accordance with Govemment
Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intamal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
in not suitable for any other purposa.

4"&;'“4 "KM\.E"%A.C.

Charleston, West Virginia
October 23, 2015

P £
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health and
the West Virginia Water Development Authority
Charleston, West Virginia

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audlted the accompanying financial statements of the West Virginla Drinking Water Treatment
Revolving Fund (the Fund), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statemants, which collectively comprise the Fund’s basic financial statements as listed In the table of contents.

Management's Responsibiiity for the Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accapted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and malntenance of internal control relevant t¢ the preparation and fair presentation
of financlal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financlal audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audlt Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemant of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financlal statements in order to design audit proceduraes that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinicn, the financial statements referred to above prasent falrly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Fund, as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its financial position, and Its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2, the financlal statements present only the Fund and do not purport to, and do not,
present fairly the financial position of the State of West Virginla as of June 30, 2015, the changes in its
financial position, or, where applicable, it cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion Is not modified with respect to this
matter.

gandlzcpas.com e "l—— = = — — - — d =




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysls on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers It to be an essential part of financlal reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applled
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted In the United States of America, which consisted of inquirles of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financlal statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an oplnion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financlal statements that comprise
the Fund's basic financial statements. The accompanying information on page 19 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of
federal awards on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional analysls as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,
and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibliity
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financia! statements. Such Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financlal statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures In
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
accompanying information and the gchedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financlal statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Govemment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have alsc issued our report dated October 27,
2015 on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of iaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and cther matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial
reporting or on compllance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Fund's intemal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

4,«1—4 } faned s

Charleston, Waest Virginia
October 27, 2015




WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
{Unaudited)

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of the West Virginia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund’s (the “Fund®)
financial performance provides an overview of the Fund's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015. Please read It in conjunction with the Fund's financial statements, which begin on page 7.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Under the former American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), the Drinking Water Treatment
Revolving Fund was awarded $19.5 million, of which $19.25 miliion was to be distributed through the
drinking water revolving loan program. Under the ARRA program at least 50% of the $19,250,000
was required to be provided in the form of principal forgiveness loans (an approved loan type whereby
the loan recipient is not required to repay the loan). The Fund closed fourteen (14) projects receiving
ARRA funding over the life of the program. $18.95 million of the $19.25 millicn was provided In the
form of principal forgiveness loans. The ARRA principal forgiveness loans are written off quarterly
according to thelr respactive debt service schedules. A total of $1.895 million in ARRA principal
forgiveness loans were written off against the existing allowance for principal forgiveness during fiscal
year 2015.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency ({the "EPA") authorized the Fund to issue
principal forgiveness loans. These loans, which are issuad fo certain local government agencies or
other ellgible water providers will be forgiven on the 30th day of June in the fiscal year coinciding with
the disbursement. These loans are deemed no longer outstanding after the last loan disbursementis
forgiven. Therefore, it is the Fund's policy to maintain an allowance for principal forgiveness loans,
equal to the amount of the disbursement, until the last disbursement is made. Consistent with the
prior year, a large operating expense, loss on forgivable lcans, was incurred due to the provisions of
the EPA princlpal forgiveness loans. Total principal forgiveness loans disbursed during the fiscal year
totaled $2.71 miliion. The Fund’s change in net position, therefore, consists of total revenues, less
operating expenses and capital grants and contributions.

The Fund's assets increased by $7,914,209 or about 6%. This is largely due to an increase in the
volume of loans Issued and funds disbursed during the fiscal year. The Fund's liabilities decreased
$28,083. This is the result of one quarterly payment due to the West Virginia Water Development
Authority for administrative and general expenses which remained outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year versus two outstanding quarterly payments due during fiscal year 2014. The Fund’s net position
increased by $7,942,292 or approximately 6%.

The Fund's revenues increased by $102,573 or approximately 8%. This is primarily due to an
increase fn administrative fees of $71,023, as well as an increase in interest on loans of $37,364. The
fund received no user fee resulting in a decrease over the previous year of $7,170. The overall
increase in revenuss is due to an Increase In loans closed over the past four plus years. The
investment samings Increased by $1,356.

Capital grant and contribution awards from the EPA and the State of West Virginia (the “State”)
continue to provide the necessary resources to the Fund to carry out its mission. Federa! and state
awards for the Fund are described in footnote § in the accompanying financial statements. Capital
grants and confributions received from the EPA and the State increased by $2,702,639 from the prior

year.

Six (6) new loans wera closed during the current year, Also, there are seventeen {17) additional loans
that are still under construction that were closed in prior years, thirteen (13} of which are substantially
complete.



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
(Unaudited)

USING THIS REPORT

This report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position report the Fund's net position and changes in
them. The Fund's net position, which is the difference between assets and liabilities, is one way to measure
the Fund's financial health or financial position. Overtime, increases or decreases in the Fund's net position
is one Indicator of whether its financial health is improving or detertorating.

THE FUND AS A WHOLE

Assets of the Fund increased $7,914,209 or about §%. The Fund has $13,806 in liabilities as of the
current fiscal year and $41,889 in llabllifles in the prior fiscal year ended June 30. The increase In assets
approximates the increase in the Fund’s net position. Our analysis that follows focuses on the net position
(Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Fund's activities.

Table 1
Statements of Net Position
2015 2014
Assets
Current assets $ 32,223,237 $ 28,238,059
Loans receivable, less current maturlties, net 114,485,726 110,566,604
Total assets $_ 146,718,062 $ 138,804,753
Liabllitles
Current llabllities $ 13,808 $ 41,889
Net position
Restricted $ 148,705,156 $ 138,762,864
Table 2
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes In Fund Net Position
2015 2014
Revenues:
Operating revenues:
Administrative fees $ 508,080 $ 527,957
interest on lpans 726,794 689,430
User fees - 7,170
Total operating revenues 1,325,774 1,224,557
Investment earnings 27,232 25876
Total revenues 1,353,006 1,250,433
Operating expenses (2,784,305) (3,287,223)
Loss before capital grants and contributions (1,431,200) (2,036,720)
Capltal grants and contributions 9,373,681 6,670,952

Increase In net position 7,942 202 4,634,162



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
{Unaudited)

THE FUND AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Most of the increase in the Fund’s assets and net position is attributable to both the capital grants and
contributions received in the current year from the EPA in the amount of $7,604,591 and the State match
through the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council in the amount of $1,769,000 totaling
$9,373,591. Of the $7,604,591 received from the EPA in the current year, $1,836,614 was disbursed with an
agreed 100% loan forgiveness feature. 100% of the EPA amount was for eligible costs reviewed and approved
by the Fund and was disbursed as loans to local governmental agencies to assist in drinking water
infrastructure projects and is Included on the balance sheet in “Loans Receivable.” Of the $1,769,000 received
from the State during the current year, $35,615 remains available. In addition, $1,889,864 in cumulative
Investment eamings on current and previous State match amounts combine to total $1,025,479, in funds that
have been committed to drinking water infrastructure projects but have not yet been expended. These moneys
are invested with the West Virginla Board of Treasury Investments and are included on the balance sheet as
“Cash Equivalents.”

The Fund's liabilities are attributable to the last quarter of administrative expenses that were payable at
the end of the fiscal year.

Capltal grant income from the EPA is recognized after the Fund has reviewed and approved supporting
Invoicas for disbursements of loan proceeds to local govemmental agencles and the federal portion of those
disbursements has been received by the Fund. Capital grant income from the EPA decreased $2,617,839
from the prior year. The sources of funding for loans to local governmental agencies, besides the capital grant
income from the EPA, and the State match, include revolving loan repayments, and investment eamings, both
of which have Increased $757,638 from prior year. Six (6) loans closed during the current ysar, totaling
$10,004,588. Two (2) loans closed In the first quarter, two (2) closed in the third quarter, and two (2) closed in
the fourth quarter.

Total revenues, Including operating revenues and investment eamings totaled $1,353,008. This was an
increase of $102,573 from pricr year. This was attributed to an increase in administrative fees of $71,023 over
the prior year as well as an increase in interest on loans of $37,364 and an increase in investment eamings of
$1,356 over the prior year. The Fund received no user fees during the year resulting in a decrease of
$7,170.

The six loans that closed in the current year totaled $10,004,588. The amounts disbursed for these loans
totaled $2,093,368 of which $855,860 represented federal funds with $316,759 of those funds having principal
forgiveness features and $225,916 represented state match, with $83,612 of those funds having principal
forgiveness features. $1,011,581 represented proceeds from loan repayments with $233,717 of those funds
having principal forglveness features. The amount disbursed during the current year for loans closed in prior
years totaled $10,425,951 of which $6,748,722 represented federal funds with $1,519,855 of those funds
having principal forgiveness features, $1,808,314 represented State match with $401,473 of those funds
having principal forgiveness features, and $1,868,915 represented proceeds from loan repayments with
$152,765 having principal forgiveness features. The sum of all disbursements for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014 was $12,519,317 and $15,680,687, respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND PENDING APPLICATION FOR EPA GRANT

As of June 30, 2015, the Fund had outstanding binding commitments to loan to qualified recipients of $7.8
million, and a $136,567 grant awarded by the EPA but not yet disbursed for approved drinking water
infrastructure projects. Funding for approved projects will come from resources currently avallable to the Fund
such as loan repayments as well as federal capital grants and State matches to be paid to the Fund in future
periods. As of the year ended June 30, 2015 the Fund has $23,539,169 in cash equivalents available for these
projects. Additionally, the Fund has $370,527 of cash equivalents from user fees obtained from a State
Settliement with the West Virginia American Water Company in 2004. These funds will be used for future
drinking water infrastructure projects.



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
{UnaudIted)

COMMITMENTS AND PENDING APPLICATION FOR EPA GRANT (Continued)

The West Virginia Bureau for Public Health submitted an application to the EPA for a grant for the Fund
for the fiscal year 2016 grant period. The application was approved in July 2015, and resulted in an award
from the EPA of $6,690,250. The $1,757,400 State match has been committed to the Fund In order to secure
the federal funds. The total of $8,347,650, awarded to the Fund, will be used to provide no-interest or low-
interest traditional or princlpal forgiveness featured ioans to assist in financing approved drinking water
infrastructure projects, including projects approved as of June 30, 2015, as noted above,

The EPA Capitalization Grant awarded but not yet disbursed for fiscal year 2015 contains a provision
which requires that not less than twenty (20) and not more than (30) percent of each grant be provided to
eligible water system loan reciplents in the form of grants, negative interest, or principal forgiveness. The
potential fiscal year 2016 grant not yet awarded will contain the same provision. The principal forgiveness will
be provided to the loan recipients as a separate loan agreement. The principal forgiveness requirement is
expected to remain a grant condition in the near future. While this new provision will not directly enhance the
Fund, the plan is that it will assist in meeting the Fund's goal of providing safe drinking water infrastructure to
Woest Virginla residents.

CONTACTING THE FUND’S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Fund's finances and toc show the
Fund’'s accountability for the money it receives. The Fund is administered by the West Virginia Water
Development Authority on behalf of the West Virginla Bureau for Public Health, if you have questions about
this report or need additional Information, contact the Executive Director or the Chlef Financial Officer of the
Waest Virginia Water Development Authority, 1009 Bullitt Street, Charleston, West Virginia 25301; call 304-414-
8500 or visit the Authority’s website (www.wvwda.org).



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2015

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Administrative fees receivable
Accrued interest recelvable
Current maturities of loans racelvable
Total current assets

Loans recelvable, less current maturities
(net of principal forgiveness of $17,110,206)

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable, related party

NET POSITION
Net position, restricted

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these flnanclal statements.

$ 23,909,696
50,624
60,527

8,202,390

32,223,237

114,485,725

$ 146,718,962

$ 13,806

$ 146,705,156



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating revenues:
Administrative fees
Interest on loans

Operating expense:
Administrative expense
Grant expense - principal forglveness

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income

Loss before capltal grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
State of West Virginia

Increass in net position
Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 598,980
726,794
1,325,774

76,123
2,708,182
2,764,305

(1,458,531)

27,232

(1,431,288)

7,804,591
1,768,000
9,373,591

7,942,202
138,762,864

$ 146,705,156



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Operating activities:

Cash payments for:
Loans originated
Administrative expenses

Cash reciepts from:
Principal repayments
Administrative fees
Interest on loans

Net cash and cash equivalents used in operating activities

Capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and contrlbutions received:
LS. Environmental Protection Agency
State of West Virginla, Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activites

Investing activities:
Investment income

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash and cash equivalents
used in operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash and cash equivalents
used in operating activities:

Increase in loans receivable
Increase in administrative fees receivable
Decrease in accrued interest receivable
Decrease in accounts payable, related party

Net cash and cash aquivalents used in operating activities

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
New loans originated with principal forgiveness features and forglven In
current year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ (12,519,319)
(104,208)

5,638,761
586,013

728,326

(5,760,426)

7,604,591
1,769,000
9,373,591

27,232
3,640,397

20,269,299

$ 23,008,600

$ (1.458,531)

(4,272,376)

(2,967)
1,531

(28,083)

$ (5760426)

$ 2708182
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE FUND

The West Virginia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund (the “Fund”) was established
pursuant to the Safe Drinking Water Act (the “Act”) by the State of West Virginia (the State), as
amended, and is administered by the West Virginia Water Development Authority (the Authority) on
behalf of the Bureau for Public Health. The purpose of the Act was to establish and implement a
State-operated perpetual revolving loan fund to provide no-interest or low-interest rate loans to local
governmental agencies and other eligible water providers to assist in flnancing drinking water
infrastructure projects, including but not limited to, design, treatment, distribution, transmission,
storage and extensions; and remain in perpetuity by recirculating the principal repayments and
interest earned from the loans. The Fund's programs are designed to provide financial assistance in
the form of no-interest, low-interest, and forgivable loans to eligible local govemmental agencies and
other eliglble water providers In the State in accordance with the Act. Such loan programs provide
long-term financing to cover all or a portion of the cost of qualifying projects.

The Fund has received capital grants and contributions from the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (the “EPA"), and the State, which is required to provide an additional twenty
percent of the federal award as matching funds in order to quallfy for funding. As of June 30, 2015,
Congress has authorized the EPA to award $176,916,782 in capitallzation grants to the State, of
which $134,025,183 is allocated to the fund. The state is required to contribute $31,469,757 in
matching funds to the Fund, which are provided through the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs
Development Council,

These financial statements present the loan activity of the Fund and do not include the activity in
any set-aside accounts required by the EPA grants.

2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Bagis of Presentation

The Fund is accounted for as a proprietary fund special purpose government engaged In
business type activities. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the United
States of America, these financlal statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, using
the flow of economic resources measurement focus. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when eamed and expenses are recognized when incurred.

The Fund is included in the State's financial statements as a proprietary fund and business type
activity using the accrual basis of accounting. Because of the Fund's presentation in these financial
statements as a special purpose government engaged in business type activities, there may be
differences between the presentation of amounts reported in these financial statements and the
financial statements of the State as a result of major fund determination.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Unlted States of America requires management to make cerlain estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from management's estimates.
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include investments with the West Virginia Board of Treasury
Investments ("BTI") and are recorded at amortized cost which approximates fair value. The State
Treasurer deposits cash with the BT at the direction of the Authority, and deposits are not separately
identifiable as to specific types of securlties. Such funds are available to the Fund daily.

Loans Receivable

The State operates the Fund as a perpstual revolving loan program, whereby loans made to local
governmental agencies or other eligible water providers are funded by a federal capitalization grant,
including amounts awarded under the former American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(ARRA), and the State matching amount and/or repayments from existing loans. Loan funds are
disbursed to the local govermmental agencies or other eligible water providers as costs are incurred
on approved projects. Interest, if applicable, is not paid during construction but begins accruing three
months before the date that local govemmental agencies or other eligible water providers begin
repayment; and the payment schedule is adjustad for actual amounts disbursed and interest accrued
on those disbursements. The loans are secured by a lien on the revenues of the local governmental
agencies’ or other eligible water providers’ water systems and by debt service reserve funds held by
the West Virginia Municipal Bond Commission. According to the toerms as set forth In the ARRA,
management believes that it is probable that certain of the local government agencies will fulfill
specific ARRA program requirements allowing for principal forgivenass, and as such a 100% principal
forglveness valuation has been made for certain of these program loans through the year ended June
30, 2015.

The Fund also Issues loans eligible for principal forgiveness from funds provided under EPA
grants received by the Fund. These loans, which are issued to certain local govemment agencies or
other eligible water providers will be forgiven on the 30" day of June in the fiscal year coinciding with
the disbursement. These loans, which are secured by principal only bonds issued by the loan
recipient, and held in the name of the Authority and the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health on
behalf of the Fund, are to be deemed no longer outstanding after the last loan disbursement is
forgiven. Therefors, it is the Fund's policy to maintain an allowance for principal forgiveness loans,
equal to the amount of the disbursemant, until the last disbursement is made to the recipient and the
loan can be remaved from the outstanding loans list.

As of June 30, 2015, with the exception of forgivable loans, no provision for uncollectible
accounts has been made because management believes that the loans will be repaid according to
the loan terms. There are no principal or interest payments in default.

Administrative Fees

Administrative fees are a percentage of the outstanding loan balance and are recognized as
income when fees are earned over the life of the loan. Administrative fees are collected over the life
of the loan concurrently with principle reduction payments by local governmental agencies or other
eligible water providers at terms set forth in the applicable loan agreements.
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continusd)
ital and Contributi

Amounts received from the EPA and the State for the confinued capitalization of the Fund are
recorded at cost as capital grants and contributions, when the funds are recsived.

Net Position

Net position is reported as restricted. Restricted net position is the result of constraints placed on
its use which have been imposed by the grantor agency and by law through enabling legislation.

erating Revenu nd Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing
services and producing and dellvering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and
expenses not related to capltal and related financing, noncapital financing or invasting activities.

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Authority, as administrative agent for the Fund, adopted Investment guidelines for the Fund.
Those guidelines require all investment funds to be Invested in accordance with the Act and
applicable federal guidelines related to the Fund. In accordance with the Act, the Fund, which Is
comprised of “moneys appropriated to the Fund by the Legislature, moneys allocated to the State by
the federal government expressly for the purpose of establishing and maintalning a drinking water
freatment revolving fund, all recelpts from loans made from the Fund, all income from the investment
of moneys held in the Fund, and all other sums designated for deposit to the Fund from any source,
public or private” is to be “continued” in the Office of the State Treasurer. The State Treasurer has
statutory responsibility for the daily cash management activities of the State's agencies, departments,
boards and commissions and transfers funds to the BTI for investment in accordance with West
Virginia Code, policles set by the BTl and by provisions of bond indentures and trust agreements
when applicable. The Fund's cash balances are invested by the BTl in the BTI's West Virginia Money
Market Pool or deposited with the State Treasurer.

Credit risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fuffill its obligations. The WV Money Market Pool has been rated AAAm by the Standard & Poor's. A
fund rated “AAAm” has extremely strong capacity to maintain principal stability and to limit exposure
to principal losses due to credit, market and/or fiquidity risks. "AAAm" is the highest principal stability
fund rating assigned by Standard & Poor's, The BTI itself has not been rated for credit risk by any
organization. '
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

The BT limits the exposure to credit risk in the WV Money Market Pool by requiring all corporate
bonds to be rated AA- by Standard & Poor's {or its equivalent} or higher. Commercial paper must be
rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's. The pool must have at least 15% of its
assets in U.S. Treasury issues. The following table provides Information on the credit ratings of the
WV Money Market Poof's investments (in thousands):

Credit Rating Percent of

Securlty Type Moody's S&P Camying Value _Pool Assets

Commerclal paper P-1 A-1+ $ 186,737 0.88 %
P-1 A1 660,027 34.91
Corporate bonds and notes Aa2 AA- 10,000 0.53
Aa3 AA- 10,000 0.53
Aa3 NR 10,000 0.53
U.S. agency bonds Aaa AA+ 81,994 4.34
U.S.Treasury notes* Aaa AA+ 229,760 12.16
U.S. Treasury bills* P-1 A1+ 92,059 4.87
Negotiable certificates of deposit Aa3 A+ 10,005 0.53
P-1 A1+ 51,000 2,70
P-1 A-1 142,000 7.51
U.S. agency discount notes P-1 A1+ 304,342 16.10
Money market funds Aaa AAAM 80,017 4,76

Repurchase agreements (underlying
securities):

U.S. treasury notes* Aaa AA+ 1,323 0.07
U.S. agency notes Aaa AA+ 11,200 0.58

$ 1,800,464 100.00 %

NR - Not rated by rating agency

* US Treasury issues are expliclily guaranteed by the United States government and not subject
to cradit risk.

Concentration of credit risk - Concentration of credit risk Is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of a pool's investment in a single corporate issuer. The BTl investment policy prohibits the
West Virginla Money Market Pool from investing more than §% of their assets in any one corporate
name or one corporate issue.

Custodial credit risk - Custodial credit risk for Investments Is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of investment
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Repurchase agresments are
required to be collateralized by at least 102% of thelr value, and the collateral is held in the name of
the BTI In all transactions, the BTI or its agent does not release cash or securities until the
counterparty delivers its side of the transaction.
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {Continued)

interest rate risk - interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an Investment. The Waest Virginia Money Market Pool is subject to interest rate risk.

The overall weighted average maturity of the investments of the West Virginia Money Market Pool
cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of Individual securities cannot exceed 387 days from date
of purchase, except for government floating rate notes, which can be up to 762 days. The following
table provides Information on the weighted average maturities for the various asset types in the WV
Money Market Pool:

Carrying Value
Security Type {In Thousands) WAM (Days)

Repurchase agreements $ 12,523 1
U.S. treasury notes 229,760 75
U.S. treasury bills 92,059 123
Commercial paper 846,764 30
Certificates of deposit 203,005 51
U.8. agency discount notes 304,342 60
Corporate bonds and notes 30,000 15
U.S. agency bonds 81,994 58
Money market funds 80,017 1

$ 1,880,464 46

Forelgn Currency risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. The West Virginia Money Market Pool
does not hold interests in foreign currency or Interests valued In foreign currency.

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE

As of June 30, 2015, loans receivable consisted of loans to lccal governmental agencies (LGA's)
or other elfiglble water providers for qualifying projects which comply with the Act. The Fund issued
$2,708,182 in loans whose principal was forglven during the year ended June 2015 in accordance
with funding covenants provided by the EPA. Accordingly a valuation account for expected principal
forgiveness has been recorded as of June 30, 2015 for the total allotment of anticipated qualifying
principal forgiveness loans. During the year, the Fund disbursed $9,811,137 of loans which are
required to be repaid in accordance with the loan agreements.



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

4 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loans receivable consisted of the following at June 20, 2015:

Loans without principal forgiveness features
ARRA loans
EPA principal forglveness lans (original principal of $11,659,436)

Total loans outstanding

Less:
Allowance for principal forgiveness programs
Current maturities

Total loans raceivable, net of current maturities and
principal forgiveness

$ 122,698,115
11,631,437

5,478,769

138,808,321

17,110,208

8,202,380

$ 114495725

15

Non-principal forgiveness loans mature at various intervals through March 2047, ARRA and EPA
principal forgiveness ioans will be forgiven over various perieds through June 2049. The scheduled
principal payments on loans maturing in subsequent years and remaining principal forgiveness in

future years are as follows at June 30:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

Less loans closed but not
disbursed at June 30, 2015

Less current maturities
Lass allowance for princlpal forglveness programs

Total loans recelvabla, net of current maturities and
principal forglveness

$ 8,202,390
8,413,952

8,607,964

8,656,878

8,706,742
107,141,114

149,729,040

9,920,719
139,808,321

8,202,390
131,605,931
17,110,208

$ 114,485,725
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

5 - CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

The Fund is awarded grants from the EPA as authorized by the Act and the State provides
matching funds from the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council’s Infrastructure
Fund. Funds drawn are recorded as capital grants and contributions from the EPA and the State. As
of June 30, 2015, the cumulative amounts awarded to the Fund from the EPA and the contributed
matching funds from the State were as follows:

Award Date EPA Grant State Match
09/11/19988 5 9,076,449 $ 2,511,760
06/11/1909 12,965,142 2,917,020
12/10/2001 5,352,330 1,651,400
11/09/2002 5,374,479 1,667,820
10/23/2003 6,656,225 1,610,500
06/16/2005 5,622,829 1,600,820
12/01/2005 5,729,139 1,660,620
12/04/2006 5,716,995 1,657,100
12/19/2007 5,678,217 1,645,860
11/07/2008 6,089,460 1,645,800
06/15/2009* 15,350,000 -
08/03/2009* 3,900,000 -
10/01/2009 5,620,740 1,629,200
07/28/2010 7,345,036 1,629,200
09/22/2010 9,466,950 2,714,600
09/15/2011 6,394,920 1,863,600
01/20/2012* 150,000 -
09/20/2012 6,224,032 1,831,257
08/05/2013 5,810,490 1,684,200
08/04/2014 6,701,750 1,769,000
Total $ 134,025,183 $ 31,460,757

The following represents the amounts of EPA grants and State matching funds received by the
Fund through June 30, 2015:

Total Capital
Cumulative Grants and
Through Federal State Contributions

June 30, 2015 $ 133,888,616 $ 31,469,757 $ 165,358,373
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

6 - COMMITMENTS

The Fund has established a list of local govemmental agencles that have formally been
recommended by the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council and approved by
the Bureau for Public Health to participate in future lending activities consistent with the guidelines of
the Act. The following is a list of outstanding commitments as of June 30, 2015:

Amount Committed

Local Governmental Agency __Commitment Date by the Fund
Wildemess PSD 3/27/2015 $ 2,370,571
Clay Battelle PSD 311372015 3,879,958
Clay Battelle PSD 3M3/20156 1,500,000
Total § 7750520

In addition, the Fund has awarded amounts not yet disbursed of approximately $9,920,719 for
projects previously approved and in various stages of completion.

7 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts and errors and omissions. Through its
participation in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management, the Fund obtained
coverage for general liability, business Interruptions, and errors and omissions. Such coverage is
provided in exchange for an annual premium. There were no changes in coverage or claims In
excess of coverage for the year ended June 30, 2015.

8 - USER FEE CONTINGENCY

As part of the settiement in the Public Service Commission of West Virginia case conceming the
acquisition of its parent company, American Water Works Company, Inc., West Virginia American
Water Company (WVAWC) agreed with the State's Attorney General to pay a user fee of three
percent of the gross revenues received by WVAWC from certain sales of water outside the State.
WVAWC ceased paying a user fee in April 2014, The Fund is currently awaiting a hearing at the
Public Service Commission to determine the outcome of any further collections. As a result
management has not recorded any receivable or revenue as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015
since It cannot determine whather any fee will be paid.

9 - TRANSACTIONS WITH STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA AGENCIES

The Authority pays for and Is reimbursed for certain administrative expenses (including salaries
and legal expenses) on behalf of the Fund. As of June 30, 2015, the Fund had incurred and
recognized $76,124 in administrative expenses of which $13,806 remained payable to the Authority
at June 30, 2015.
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

10 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measuremen! and Application, which
provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purpaoses. This
statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures
related to all fair value measurements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. Management of the Fund has not determined
the effect, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

The GASB has Issued Statement No. 78, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepled Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments, which identifles the hierarchy of generally accepted
accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governments. This
statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepied Accounting Principles
for Slate and Local Governments. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. Management of the Fund has not determined
the effect, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.



ACCOMPANYING INFORMATION
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULES OF ADMINISTRATIVE FEES ACTIVITY

June 30, 2015

Schedule of assets and fund net position
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Administrative fees receivable

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable, related party

Restricted fund net position

Schedule of administrative feas activity in fund net position
Revenues:

Adminlistrative fees
Interest on invesiments

Total revenues

Expenses:
Administrative expense

Neat income
Resfricted fund net position - administrative fees, beginning of year

Restricted fund net position - administrative fees, end of year

Schedule of cash flows
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by administrative fees activity:

Increase in administrative fees receivable
Increase in accounts payable, related party

Net cash provided by administrative fees activity
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

See Indepandent Auditor's Report.

$ 4,052,334

60,624

$ 4,102,958

$ 13806
§ 4,089, 1 52
$ 598,880
4616

603,596

76,123

527,473

3,661,679

$ 4089152
$ 527,473
(2,967)
(28,083)
496,423

3,665,911

$ 4,052,334
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WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Endad June 30, 2015

__CFDA#  Expendifures
LS. Environmental Protection Agency

Capltalization Grants for Drinking Water
State Revolving Funds 66.4588 §__7.604591

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The above schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the West
Virglnia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Loan Fund (the Fund) and is presented cn the accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizafions. All expenditures of federal
awards In this schedule are passed through to subrecipients in the form of loans and forgivable loans and
grants.

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health and
the West Virginia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund
Charleston, West Virginla

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the West Virginia Drinking Water
Treatment Revolving Fund (the Fund), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Fund's basic financial statements, and have issued
our report thereon dated October 27, 2015.

Internal Control over Financlal Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Fund's intemal control
over financial reporting {Intemal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of exprassing our opinion on the financiaf statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinlon on the effactiveness of the Fund's internal control.

A deficiency in intsrnal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maferial weakness Is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in intermnal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Fund's financial statements will not be preventad, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiancy is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
materlal weakness, yet Important encugh to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencles. Glven these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencles in
intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not baen |dentified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compllance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The rasults
of our tests disciosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemnal control and compliance
and the resulis of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit preformed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
in not suitable for any other purpose.

4,«44.»-4 } faned Auc.

Charleston, West Virginia
October 27, 2015




@( SSIKAWASH B

Charleston, West Virginla 25301

Office: 304.345.8400
Fax: 304.345.845]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the West Virginia Bureau for Public Health and
the Waest Virginia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund
Charleston, West Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the West Virginia Drinking Water Treatment Revolving Fund ‘s(the Fund) compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on the Fund's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2015.
The Fund's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs.

Management's Responsibllity

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to Its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Fund's major federal program based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
raasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Fund’s compliance with those requirements and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Fund's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinlon, the Fund complied, In ali material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended
June 30, 2015.
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Fund is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over

compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered the Fund's internal controf over compliance with the types of requirements that
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could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the clrcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in Internal control over compliance s a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibliity that
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance Is a
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in Intenal control over compllance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that Is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemnance.

Our consideration of Intemal control aver compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencles in internal control over compllance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies In internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, however, material weaknegses may
exist that have not been identlfied.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

4,&&-4 § fanad Auc.

Charleston, West Virginia
October 27, 2015




WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

25

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Materlal weakness{es) identified? _ Yes _X__ No
« Significant deficiency(les) identified? Yes X__ None reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? __ Yes _X No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
« Material weakness(es) identiflad? Yes X No

¢ Significant deficiency({les) Identified? Yes _X _ None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:  Unmodified
Any audlt findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with section §10(a) of Circular A-1337 Yes X __ No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federgl Program or Cluster
66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water

State Revolving Funds



WEST VIRGINIA DRINKING WATER TREATMENT REVOLVING FUND

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
{Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2015

26

Section | - Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued)

Dollar threshold used to distingulsh
between type A and type B programs: $ 300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _ Yes ___ No

Section Il - Financlal Statement Findings

No findings were Identified that are required to be reported under this section.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No findings were identified that are required to be reported under this section.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Woest Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council
Charleston, Wast Virginia

Report on the Financlal Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council (the
Council), a component unit of the State of West Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Council’'s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibliity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements In
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibliity

Our responsibllity is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financlal statements are free from material misstatement.

An audlt involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also Includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financlal statements.

Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of
the Councll, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America,

ganditcpas.com A:l; —_— WSS




gandlitcpas.com

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discusslon and analysis on pages 3 through 10 and the schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension
liability and the schedule of contributions to the PERS on pages 40 through 42 be presented to supplement the
baslc financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of Inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an oplnion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23,
2015, on our consideration of the Council's interal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report Is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an oplnion on internal control over financlal
reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Council's internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

/,7,«(4.—-4 } fasnsd ..

Charleston, West Virginla
October 23, 2015




WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Coungcil’s (the
*Council’) financial performance provides an overview of the Council’'s financlal activities for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015. Please read it in conjunction with the Council's financial statements, which
begin on page 11.

USING THIS REPORT

This report consists of a series of fund level and govemment-wide financlal statements. The
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report the net position and activities of the Council
as a whole. The Governmental Fund's Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance report the Council's governmental fund balance and the respective changes in
it. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net
Position - Proprietary Fund present the proprietary fund net position and the respective changes in net
position. The Council's net position and the Council's fund balance represent ways to measure the
Council's financial health or financlal position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Council's net
position and fund balance are indicators of whether its financial health Is improving or deterlorating.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Business Type Activities:
e Total assets increased $38.1 million from $797.6 million to $835.7 million
e Deferred outflows of resources decreased $70 thousand from $2.38 million to $2.31 milllon
o Total liabilities increased $87 million from $114 million to $201 million
¢ Deferred inflows of resources increased $82 thousand from the previous year
e Net position decreased $49 million from $686 milllon to $637 million

Governmental Activities:

Total assets Increased $966 thousand from $102 thousand to $1,068 thousand
Deferred outflows of resources increased $6.6 million from $2.6 milllion to $9.2 mlllion
Total liabilities decreased $6 milion from $223 millien to $217 million

The deficiency in net position decreased $13 million from ($220) million to ($207) millien

® 8 & @°

Government Wide:

Total assets increased $39 milion from $797.7 million to $836.7 million

Deferred outflows of resources Increased $6.6 million from $4.9 million to $11.5 million
Total liabilitles increased $81 milllon from $337 million to $418 million

Deferred inflows of resources Increased $82 thousand from the prior year

Net position decreased by $35.7 million from $466 million to $430 million

Other Highlights:

« 27 water and waste water project and economic development loans were closed for the year
ended June 30, 2015 on behalf of the Council

« 30 water and wastewater grants were closed for the year ended June 30, 2015 on behalf of the
Councll



WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

(Unaudited)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

Our analysis below focuses on the Net Position (Table 1) and Changes in Net Position (Table 2) of

the Council:
Table 1
Net Posltion
2015 2015 2014 2014
Business Type Govemmental Business Type Governmental
_Activities Type Activities Activities Type Activities
ASSETS
Cash equivalents $ 250,758,111 § 1,019,582 $ 209,000,313 $ 20
Investmenis 102,847,563 . 102,858,563 -
Assets held by others 528,600 - 1,000,000 -
Loans receivable, net 479,201,544 - 482,186,809 -
Other 2,323,752 48,139 2,556,715 101,503
Total assets $ 8356595670 § 1,087,721 % 797,602,400 $ 101,523
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources
from pensions $ 44777 § - § - $ -
Deferred loss on refunding 2,288,130 9,194,777 2,383,069 2,655,853
Total deferred outflows $ 2,312,807 § 9,194,777 $ gaaa,oss $ 2,555,853
LIABILITIES
Bond payable, net $ 197,761,815 § 215,064,079 $ 112,734,894 § 221,449,781
Net pansion liabllity 77,670 - - .
Other 3,281,488 978,318 1,439,625 1,180,276
Total liabilities $ 201,120,973 $ 216942397 $ 114174519 § 222 630,057
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from
pensions $ 82,1864 § - 8 - 8 -
Total deferred inflows of resources  $ 82164 $ - § - § -
NET POSITION
Restricted $ 618,800,124 % 1,019,582 $ 641270454 § 20
Unrestricted {deficit) $ 17,879,216 (207,699.481) 44,531,496 (219,872,701)
Total net position $ 636769340 §$ (206679,898) $ 685810950 $ 219,972,681



WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
(Unaudited)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNCIL AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Table 2
Changes In Net Posltion
2015 2015 2014 __ 2014
Business Type Governmental Business Type Governmental
_Activities Type Actlvities Activites Type Activities
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 2500776 § - $ 3076311 -
General revenuas
Miscellaneous revenues - - 100,000 -
Intergovemmental 26,000,000 23,000,000 46,000,000 23,000,000
Investment eamings 248,852 3,728 264,601 8,755
Total general revenues 26,248,852 23,003,728 46,364,601 23,006,755
Total ravenues 28,839,628 23,003,728 49,440,912 23,006,755
Expsnaes
General & administrative 866,523 - 1,023,302 -
Interest on long-term debt 7,040,321 9,343,684 4,899,562 11,182,265
Bond issue costs 604,567 367,262 - -
Infrastructure & economic
development 60,472,348 29,360,010 -
Loss on uncollsctible loans 8,750,000 - 525,000 -
Transfers (in) out - - (256,358) 256,358
Total expenses 77,733,759 9,710,846 35,651,516 11,438,623
Changes in net position (48,894,131) 13,292,782 13,889,396 11,568,132
Beginning nst position {deficit) 685,810,950 {219,972,681) 671,921,554 (231,540,813)
Cumulative effect of change in acct
principal {147 479) - - -
Beginning net position, restated 685,663,471 (219,972,681) 671,921,554 {231,540,813)
Ending net position (deficit) $ 636,760,340 $ (206,675,899) § 685,810,950 $ (216,972,681)




WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
{(Unaudited)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNCIL AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Cash equlvalents, which include short-term, highly liquid Investments with original maturities of 90
days or less, increased $43 million, from $209 million last year to $251 million at the end of the current
year. The increase in cash was primarily the result of the additional funds generated from the 2014
Chesapeake Bay bond issue of $87 million. In addition, the mineral severance tax, interest on loans,
principal repayments of loans and investment earnings all contributed to the increase.

Offsefting these Increases were expenses for grants and loans, Including grants of $42 million for the
Chesapeake Bay projects, contributions of the State Matching funds for the federally sponsored Drinking
Water Treatment and Clean Water State Revolving Funds, principal and interest payments on
outstanding bonds payable, and general and administrative expenses.

Investments remained consistent with the prior year increasing $11 thousand resuilting from the net
gain on assets.

Assets held by others decreased $471 thousand due to the write down of a parcel of property by
$500 thousand, which was acquired from Spencer Veneer In lieu of foreclosure of their economic
development loan.

Loans receivable decreased $3.0 million. This decrease was primarily the combined effect of
disbursements of new and prior year loan funds to projects of approximately $36.2 million, less
repayments of principal on loans of approximately $30.9 million, offset by an increase in the allowance for
uncollectible economic development loans of $3.3 million.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $70 thousand due to the amortization of the loss on
refunding and the deferral of pensions and pension contributions due to the implementation of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Finenclal
Reporiing for Pensions.

Total liabliities Increased $87 million primarily due to the issuance of the Series 2014 bond in the
amount of $75.8 million plus a premlum of $12.3 million. These funds will be used to provide grants for
the Chesapeake Bay and Greenbrier Watershed projects.

Deferred Inflows of resources increased by $82 thousand due to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.

Resfrictions of net position are the result of constraints placed on the use of net position which
have been imposed externally through debt covenants and by law through enabling legislation. Restricted
net position decreased approximately $22 million during the current year. That decrease can be explained
primarily as follows: mineral severance tax revenue of $23 million and a transfer from the unrestricted
funds of $40 million for loan disbursements. Also, included in the increase were loan repayments of
principal and Interest totaling $34 million. Offsetting the Increases were disbursements of $54 million for
grants awarded in current and prior years, $20 million of principal and Interest expense related to revenue
and general obligation bonds, loan disbursements of $31 million, and an increase in the allowance for
uncollectible loans of $3.3 million. Transfers from restricted accounts included interest eamings on
accounts funded with residual mineral severance tax revenue and earnings on accounts funded with
State appropriations of excess lottery revenue and eamings on debt service reserve funds. As provided
by enabling legislation, the eamings on those restricted accounts were transferred to the unrestricted
revenue account and various rebate accounts and were used, in part, to pay operating expenses of the
Councill.



WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
{(Unaudited)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNCIL AS A WHOLE (Continued)

Unrestricted Net Poslitlon for business type activitles as of June 30, 2015 is $17.9 million, a
decrease from the prior year of approximately $27 million. This is due to the receipt of excess Iottery
revenue of $20 million offset by an internal transfer within the business type activities to restricted funds
of $40 million, payment of general and administrative expenses of $866 thousand, and $6 million for the
State Match of the federally sponsored Clean Water State Revolving Fund and the Drinking Water
Treatment Revolving Fund,

Fund Balance/Government-wide Net Position The only activity reported in the governmental fund
relates to future payments of the General Obligation Bonds which mature through fiscal year 2027. See
Note 9 In the Notes to the Financlal Statements for further detail. Although the governmental fund reports
a deficit, $23 million of intergovernmental revenue is statutorily provided every year by the State of West
Virginia from excess mineral severance tax in order to pay the debt service for the General Obligation
Bonds. The total government - wide net position as of June 30, 2015, Is $430 milllon.

Charges for services consist of interest earnings on loans to projects which decreased during the
current year by approximately $488 thousand. Loans receivable had a net decrease of $3.0 milion during
the current year and most of the new loans to projects are full term noninterest bearing or bear no interest
during the construction period or the accrual and payment of interest are for other reasons deferred to
future periods.

Intergovernmental actlvity consists of $23 million mineral severance tax revenue and $26 million
excess lottery revenus, both appropriated from the State. The mineral severance tax revenue was
received from the State’s general fund into the Debt Service Fund to pay the general obligation bonds
debt service payments required in fiscat year 2015. Excess lottery revenue represents the amount in the
State's lottery fund in the State Treasury appropriated by the Legislature to the Council for loans, grants
and other funding assistance, as well as payment of debt service on the 2014 Series bonds, Issued to
provide grants for the Chesapeake Bay and Greenbrier Watershed projects.

Investment earnings consist of earnings on excess lottery revenue and eamings on repayments of
principal and interest on loans to projects. Investment eamings also include eamings on committed but
not yet disbursed proceeds of bond issuances and eamings on mineral severance tax revenue that is
invested prior to payment of debt service on the general obligation bonds. Subsequent to the payment of
debt service, any residual mineral severance tax revenue is transferred to the business type activity fund
and then invested accordingly.

Investment earnings decreased $19 thousand from the prior year. Interest rates for the money market
accounts in which most of the Council's funds are invested remained low throughout the year.

Interest on long-term debt increased approximately $302 thousand. The increase is due to the
Issuance of the Series 2014 bond.

Infrastructure and economic development activity consists of grants paid to projects, binding
commitments as well as the contributions for the required State matches for the federally sponsored
Drinking Water Treatment and Clean Water State Revolving Funds. The current year disbursement of
State Matching funds was approximately $6 million, of which $1.8 miliion was allocated to the Drinking
Water Treatment Revolving Fund and $4.3 milllion to the Clean Water State Revolving Fund. As of year-
end, the Council has 33 binding commitments. These include 16 Ioans and 17 grants for which the funds
are committed and not disbursed as described in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Loss on uncollectible loans increased $3.3 million due to the write off of one EDA loan in the
amount of $5 million that had met certain criteria of the forgivable loan feature. The aliowance for
uncollectible accounts was increased by $1.6 million to aliow for two additional EDA loans that have the
forgivable features and It is more likely than not that certain criteria will be met in future years to permit
the write off of those two loans. An additional $1 million was included to cover those loans that are
anticipated to be uncoliectible in future years.



WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
{Unaudited)

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

West Virginla Code §29-22-18a (Section 18a) created within the State’s lottery fund in the State
Treasury an excess lottery revenue fund from which moneys are disbursed in specific allocations to
various State accounts, including the Council.

Section 18a and related subsections of the West Virginia Code provide for certain deposits to
accounts available to the Council for debt service payments and to fund water, wastewater, and economic
development projects. Deposits for debt service payments are to be made during each fiscal year In the
amount of $6 million. For the year ended June 30, 2015, deposits of $20 million are to be made for water,
wastewater, and economic development projects, with no more than 50% of the funds deposited to be
spent on grants. For the year ended June 30, 2016, $30 million is to be deposited for projects and
includes the stipulation that no more than 50% of the funds deposited may be spend for grants. Section
18a also includes language establishing the priority of deposits for these purposes and prescribes the
fiming of the deposits.

In accordance to House Bill 205, $26 million was appropriated to the West Virginia Infrastructure
Council during flscal year 2015 with the first $6 million to be used for debt service on the Series 2014
bonds that were issued for the Chesapeake Bay and Greenbrier Watershed projects and the remaining
$20 million to be used for water, wastewater and economic development projects around the state.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Infrastructure General Obligation Bonds and Refunding Bonds constitute a direct and general
obligation of the State, and the full faith and credit of the State is pledged to secure the payment of the
principal and interest on such bonds. The debt service on such general obligation bonds is paid from the
dedication of mineral severance taxes in the State's general fund.

The Waest Virginia Water Development Authority (the Authority) Is authorized to issue, on behalf of the
Councll, infrastructure and refunding bonds, which do not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and
credit of the State, for the purpose of providing funds to enable the Councll to finance the acquisition or
construction of water, wastewater and infrastructure projects. The debt service on such infrastructure
bonds are paid from repayments of principal and Interest on a set of defined loans previously made by the
Authority on behalf of the Council.

At year-end, $385 million (prior to amortization) in general obligation, revenue and refunding bonds
issued for the benefit of the Councii were outstanding versus $328 milllion in the prior year, an increase of
17% resulting from the issuance of the Series 2014 bonds and current year accreted interest on capital
appreciation bonds offset by the refunding through Series 2015A and Series 2015B of the Infrastructure
General Obligation Bonds Series 1996D, Series 1898A, Series 1999C, and a portion of Series 2006A, as
well as scheduled principal payments. For more information on long-term debt, please refer to Note 9 of
the financial statements.

As of June 30, 2015, Assured Guaranty, the bond Insurer for the West Virginia Water Development
Authority, Infrestructure Revenue Bonds Series 2007A; West Virginia Water Development Authority,
infrastructure Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2006A and Series 2006B had a Standard & Poor's rating
of AA.

As of June 30, 2015, the State of West Virginia, Infrastructure General Obligation Bonds Series 1996A
had a Standard & Poor's rating of AA-. The State of West Virginia Infrastructure General Obligation Bonds
Series 2006 A and the State of West Virglnia infrastructure General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series
2011A, Series 2015A and Series 2015B had a Standard & Poor's rating of AA. The bond insurer, National
Pubiic Finance Guarantee Corporation, had a rating by Standard & Poor's of AA-.
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION {Continued)

As of June 30, 2015, the West Virginia Water Development Authority, Infrastructure Revenue
Refunding Bonds Series 2012 A had a Moody’s rating of Aa3 and a Fitch rating of AA-.

As of June 30, 2015, the West Virginia Water Development Authority, Infrastructure Excess Lottery
Revenue Bonds Series 2014A had a rating by Standard & Poor's of AAA.

The ratings, or lack thereof, of the bond Insurers did not result In any event of default and does not
affect the fixed interest rates paid on its' bonds issued on its behalf by the Authority. Any downward
revision or withdrawal of any such rating could have an adverse effect on the secondary market price of
the bonds issued on its’' behalf by the Authority. The outstanding revenue bonds, except for Series 2011
which was issued with a rating of AA, by Standard & Poor's, were originally issued with a rating of AAA by
Standard & Poor's on the understanding that the standard insurance policy purchased guaranteed the
timely payment of principal and Interest on the bonds. There Is no assurance that a particular rating will
continue for any given period of time or that it will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely if, in the Judgment
of Standard & Poor's, circumstances so wamrant.

The Authority's (and thereby, the Council's bonds) underlying rating of A from Standard & Poor's
reflects the State’s moral obligation, which is one full category below the State’s AA rating. Ultimately,
rating strength is provided by the pledge to maintain a debt service reserve fund equal to the maximum
annual debt service on all outstanding bonds and servicing of underlying loans. if the amount in the
reserve funds falls below the required maximum annual debt service level, the Governor, on notification by
the Authority, may request the State's Legislature to appropriate the necessary funds to replenish the
reserve to its required level. The State's Legislature, however, is not legally required to make such
appropriation.

The Council continues to monitor the status of the bond Insurers and is considering options for
issuance of future bonds without an Insurance policy.

FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT THE COUNCIL

Currently known facts, decisions or conditions that are expected to have a significant effect on
financial position or results of operations (revenues, expenses, and other changes In fund balance and
net position} include several factors.

The Legislature appropriated to the Council $36 million for fiscal year 2018 from the excess lottery
revenue fund. This amount is contingent on revenue collected from state video lottery operations meeting
expected projections; therefore, the Council may receive up to $30 millien to provide additional loans,
grants and other funding assistance and an additional $6 million restricted for debt service on bonds
Issued to fund Chesapeake Bay and Greenbrier Watershed projects.

There are several other factors which are unknown that may sffect the Council. These factors include
changes in existing legislation and regulations, amounts collected in the excess lottery fund, market
conditions that could impact investment income or affect the viability of Issuing additional revenue bonds,
and economic conditions that may affect the repayment of Councii loans.

Due to the uncertainty on the future repayment of these loans, as well as other economic
development project loans, the Council maintains a reserve for uncollectible economic development
project loans io recognize currant events.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued
{Unaudited)

CONTACTING THE COUNCIL'S MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Council's finances and to show
the Council's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial informaticn, contact the Executive Diractor or Chief Financlal Officer, West Virginia
Water Development Authority, 1009 Bullitt Street, Charleston, West Virginia 256301 (Phone: 304-414-
6500) or the Executive Director, West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council, 1009 Buliitt
Street, Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (Phone: 304-414-8500).
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Year Ended June 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash equivalents

Investments

Accrued interest recelvable

Prepald insurance

Asset held by others

Loans recelvable, net of allowances of $14,643,000
Miacellanecus recelvable

Total assats

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Losses on bond refundings
Deferred outflows of resources from pension

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other State of West Virginla agencles
Accrued Intsrest payable
Net pension labillty
General obligation bonds
Due within one year, net of unamortized
premium of $1,381,610

Due after one year, net of unamortized
premium of $13,621,806

Revenue bonds
Due within one year, net of unemortized
premium of $686,118 and unamortized discount
of $7,577

Due after one year, net of unamortized
premium of $12,783,200 and unameortized discount
of $54,833

Total labllities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferrend inflows of resources from pensions

NET POSITION

Net position:
Restricted
Unrestricted {deficlt)

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thess financlal statements.

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 1,010,682 $ 250,758,111 § 251,777,683
102,847,563 102,847,563
- 1,941,851 1,941,951
48,130 363,883 412,022
- 528,800 528,600
479,201,544 470,201,544
- 17,818 17,918

$§ 1087721 § 835850,570 § 836,727,291

$ 9104777 $§ 2288130 $ 11,462,007
- 44777 44,777

$§ 0194777 $ 2312807 § 11,507,684
$ -8 18,533 § 18,533
- 194,684 104,684

978,318 3,088,271 4,046,589

. 77,670 77,670

17,786,610 - 17,786,610
198,177,469 - 108,177,460

< 6,713,530 6,713,539

- 191,048,276 191,048,276

$_ 216042307 § 201120673 § 418,063,370

§ - $ 82,164 $ 82,164
$ 1,019,582 § 618,800,124 § 510,609,706
{207,699,481) 17,879,216 (188,820,265)

§ (206,679,808) $ 636,760,340 $ _ 430,080441
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net (Expenses) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position
Program Governmental  Business-Type

Functions/Programs __Expenses Revenue Activities Activities Total
Govemmental activities:

Interest and bond Issuance costs

on long-term debt $ 6710948 $ - % (9,710,948) - $ (9,710,946)
Business-type actlvities:

Infrastructure and jobs development ___77,733,759 2,590,776 - (75,142,983) (75,142,983)
Total primary government § 87,444,705 $ 2590,776 $__(9,710,946) $ (75,142,983) $ (84,853,929)

General revenues:

Intergovermnmental $ 23,000,000 $ 26,000,000 § 49,000,000

Investment eamings 3,728 248,852 252,580
Total general revenues and transfers 23,003,728 26,248,852 49,252,580

Change in net position 13,202,782 (48,894,131) (35,601,349)

Net position, beginning of year (219,972,681) 685,810,950 465,838,269

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - (147,479) (147, 479)
Net poeltion, beginning of year, as restated (219,972,681) 685,663,471 465,690,790
Net position, end of year $ (206,679,899) $ 636,769,340 § 430,089,441

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theee financlal statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

ASSETS

Cash

E BA| E

Restricted

Total fund balance

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

June 30, 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Debt Service
Fund

$ 1,019,582

$ 1,019,582

1,019,582

$ 1,019,582
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Debt Service
Fund
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 23,000,000
Investment earnings 3728
Total revenues __ 23,003,728
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal 15,885,000
Interest 5,731,803
Bond issue costs 367,263
Total expenditures _ 21,984,166
Other Financing Sources (uses):
Debt Service:
Bonds issued - face value 71,855,000
Bonds issued - premiums 13,075,063
Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent (84,730,083)
Total other financing sources (uses) -
Net change In fund balance 1,019,662
Fund balance, beginning of year 20

Fund balance, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 1010582
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
STATEMENT CF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2015

ASSETS Enterprisa Fund
Current assets:
Cash equivalents $ 250,758,111
Investments 102,847,563
Current portlon of loans racelvable 18,804,237
Accrued interest recelvable 1,841,951
Prepald Insurance 15,153
Miscallaneous recelvable . 1reis
Total current assets 374,384,933
Noncurrent assets:
Asset held by others 528,800
Prepald Insurance 348,730

Loans receivable, net of allowances of $14,643,000
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

EFE TF| F RE
Deferred cutflows of resources from penslons
Loss on bond refundings

ITIE
Current |labllitles:

Accounts payable
Due to other State of West Virginia agencles
Accrued Interest payable
Current portion of revenue bonds payable, net of unamortized
premium of $688,116 and unamortized discount
of $7,577
Total current liebliities

Noncurrent llablilties:

Net penslon llabllity

Noncurrent portion of revenue bonds payable, net of unamortized
premium of $12,763,200 and unamortized discount
of $54,833

Total liablliies

DE E
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions

1Tl
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

460,307,307
461,274,637

$__ 835650,670
$ 4,777

2,268,130
§ 2,312,807

$ 18,533
184,684
3,068,271

__ 87135%
8805027

77,670

191,048,776

$ 201,120,073

$ 82,164

$ 618,800,124
17,879,216

$__ 636,769,340
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Enterprise Fund
Interest charges for services $ 2,590,776
Operating expenses:
Infrastructure and economic development 60,472,348
Provisions for uncollectible loans 8,750,000
General and administrative 866,623
Total operating expenses 70,088,871
Operating loss (67,498,095)
Nenoperating revenues (expensas):
Intergovernmental 26,000,000
Investment eamings, net 248,852
Bond issue costs (604,567)
Interest on bonds (7,040,321)
Total nonoperating revenues, net 18,603,964
Changs in net position (48,894,131)
Net position, beginning of year 685,810,950
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (147,479)
Net position, beginning of year, as restated 685,663,471
Net position, end of year $ 636,769,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts of principal on loans
Receipts of interest on loans
Disbursements of loans
Disbursemants of grants
Disbursements of general and administrative expenses
Disbursements on behalf of employees
Disbursements on behalf of other agencles

Net cash used in operations

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Excess lottery and other appropriations
Principal paid on revenue bonds
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds
Interest paid on revenue bonds

Net cash provided by noncapltal financing activitles

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Purchase of Investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Investment eamings

Net cash provided by investing activities
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of ysar

Reconcillation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating
activities:
Provision for loan losses
Pension expense
Changes in operating accounts:
Due from other agencies
Due to other agencies
Loans recelvable
Miscellaneous recsivables
Accrued interest receivable
Receipts from other agencies
Accounts payable
Deferrad outflows of resources due to pension contributions

Net cash used in operating activities

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

$ 30,955,205
2,809,401
(36,219,941)
(60,472,348)
(893,478)

117,745
(178,768)

(63,882,182)

26,000,000

(2,620,000)

75,185,433
6,815,508

105,380,941

(199,904,590)
199,018,832
244,797

259,039

41,757,798

209,000,313
$ 250,758,111

$  (67,498,005)

8,750,000
8,667

471,400
124,439
(5.764,735)
255
218,370
(147.479)
(3,914)
(42,090)

$ _ (63,882,182)
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 - REPORTING ENTITY

The West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council (the Council) was created as a
governmental entity of the State of West Virginia {the State) under the provisions of Chapter 31,
Article 15A, Section 3 of the Code of West Virginia, 1831, as amended, and known as the West
Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Act (the Act). The Council has statutory responsibility to
review the preliminary applications for wastewater facilities, water facilities or combination projects, or
infrastructure projects seeking State funding and to either make a written recommendation as to the
infrastructure project financing, in terms of the kind, amount and source of funding, which the project
sponsor should pursue and which the State infrastructure agency or agencles should consider an
appropriate investment of public funds, or a determination that the project or infrastructure project Is
not eligible for funding assistance from any State infrastructure agency or the project or infrastructure
projact is not otherwise an appropriate or prudent Investment of State funds, and make a
recommendation that the project sponsor not seek funding from any State infrastructure agency.

The Council consists of thirteen voting members, including the Governor or their designee as
chairman and executive representation from the Housing Development Fund, Department of
Environmental Protection, Economic Development Authority, Water Development Authority {the
Authority), Bureau for Public Health, Public Service Commission and six members representing the
general public. The Authority serves as the administrative agency for the Council, is the fiduclary
agent of the West Virginia Infrastructure Fund and Is authorized to issue infrastructure revenue and
refunding bonds on behalf of the Council.

As the state is able to Impose Its will over the Council, the Council Is included in the State's
comprehensive annual financial report as an enterprise fund.

2 - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the government. The effect of
interfund activity has been eliminated from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and Intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-fype
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental fund and the enterprise fund,
which are reported as separate columns in the government-wide financlal statements.

3 - MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

3 - MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the curent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liablilties of the current period.

The government reports the following major governmental fund:

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
principal and interest on long term debt.

The govemment reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of certain landing activities that are financed
with debt, which is secured by a pledge of fees and charges for that activity. In addition, a
grant program for watershed improvements was funded with proceeds of a bond issue. The
debt service on the bond issue is to be paid from annual appropriations of funds from an
external revenue source.

The effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the proprietary fund are interest on loans receivable. Operating expenses for
the proprietary fund Includes the cost of services and administrative expenses. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

4 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Budgeta untin
Except for excess lottery revenue appropriated for expenditures in the enterprise fund and

mineral severance taxes appropriated for debt service in the debt service fund, the Council's funds
are not subject to the Legislative budget process.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include investments with original maturities of less than ninety days.

Investments

All investments with readily determined falr values are stated at fair value determined from
published sources.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
for Uncollectibl n

The Council uses the allowance method of providing for loan losses on economic development
project loans. The provislon for loan losses charged to operating expense is based on factors which
deserve current recognition in estimating possible losses, such as growth and composition of the loan
portfolio, relationship of the allowance for uncollectible loans to outstanding loans, cument financial
condition of the borrowers, changes In specific Indusries, and overall economic conditions.

Because of uncertainties in the estimation process, including local and industry economic
conditions, as well as coflateral values, it is reasonably possible that management's estimate of
losses In the loan portfolio for economic development projects and the related allowance may
materially change in the near term. The amount of the change that Is reasonably possible, however,
cannot be estimated.

The Coundll has not established an allowance for uncollectible loans in its loan portfollo for water and
wastewater projects because of remedies avallable to it in the loan agreements that exist between the
Authority on behalf of the Council and the various entities to which the loans were made.

In nd Transactl

During the normal course of Council operations, transfers of resources to provide services take
place between funds. Interfund transactions are recorded as transfers as determined by Council
management.

Bond Premiums, Discoun Issuance C

Bond premiums and discounts are amortized using the straight-line method over the varying
terms of the bonds issued. The siraight-ine method is not in accordance with GAAP, but the
difference in amortization using the straight-line methed, versus the effective interest method which is
in accordance with GAAP, is not material to the financial statements as a whole. Bond Issuance costs
are expensed as incurred.

Deft tfl of Res In Resou

The statement of net position reports a separate financial statement element called deferred
outfiows of resources. This financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources {expense) untll that
time. The councll reports losses on bond refundings and certain pension amounts as deferred
outflows of resources on the statement of net position.

The statement of net posltion reports a separate financlal statement element called deferred
inflows of resources. This financlal statement element represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period and so will nof be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The Councll reports deferred inflows of resources related to pensions or the statsment of net
position.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

4 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pengion

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pansion expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and additions to/deductions from
PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERS.
For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Arbitrage Rebate Pavable

The United States Intemal Revenue Code of 1988, as amended (the “Code"), prescribes
restrictions applicable to the Council as issuer of Infrastructure Fund Revenue and Refunding Bonds.
Among those Include restrictions on earnings on the bond proceeds. The Code requires payment to
the federal government of investment eamings on certain bond proceeds in excess of the amount that
would have been eamed if the proceeds were invested at a rate equal to the yield on the bonds. As of
June 30, 2015, the Council is not liable to the federal government as a result of arbitrage.

Fun Ccas

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance has been reported as restricted.
Restricted fund balances represent fund balances which are restricted by constraints placed on its
use of resources by either: (1) extemally imposed creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions and
enabling legisiation. The Council's governmental fund is restricted by enabling legislation.

Net Position

Net position is presented as restricted or unrestricted. Restricted net position represents assets
restricted for the repayment of bond proceeds or by bond covenants. When an expense is incurred
for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position is avallable, restricted resources
are appiied first.

§ - CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

Effective July 1, 2014, the Council adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions-an amendment of
GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The Council
determined that it was not practical to restate all periods presented and has recorded the cumulative
effect of the decrease to beginning net position of implementing this change of $147,479 as of July 1,
2014, which is the net pension liabllity of $188,435 less deferred outflows of resources related to
pension plan contributions of $40,956 as of that date. The Council further determined that it was not
practical to determine the amounts of all deferred inflows of resources and defaerred outflows of
resources related to penslons as of July 1, 2014 and these amounts are not reported.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

6 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts reported in the statement of net position differ from the governmental fund balance
sheet because of the following:

Total fund balance on governmental fund balance sheet $ 1,019,582

Under the current financial resources measurement focus
and modified accrual basis of accounting, liabilities
related o debt service are not recorded untll due
and are not included in the govemmental funds

balance sheet:
Prepaid insurance on outstanding bond issues 48,139
Deferred outflows of resources 9,194,777
General obllgation bonds (215,964,079)
Accrued interest on general obligation bonds —  (978,318)
Net position (deficit) of governmental activities & {206,679 .899)

Amounts reported In the statement of activities differ from the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balance - governmental fund because of the following:

Net change in fund balance - governmental fund $ 1,019,562

Principal debt payments recorded on the modifled
accrual basls of accounting are not recorded

in the govemmental activities 15,885,000
Proceeds from GO refunding bonds, including premiums (84,731,652)
Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent 84,731,652

Accretion of interest reiated to capital
appreciation bonds is an expense
of the govermmental activities 811

Change in net position of governmental activities 3 13202782
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES

The Authority, as fiscal agent for the Councll, adopted and adheres to investment guidelines for
the Council. Those guidelines and the General Revenue Bond Resolutlon authorize the Council to
invest all bond proceeds and other revenues in obligations of the United States and certain of its
agencles, certificates of deposit, public housing bonds, direct and general obligations of states which
are rated in either of the two highest categories by Standard & Poor's Corporation, advance-refunded
municipal bonds and repurchase agreements relating to certain securities. With the exception of
deposits and investments of the General Obligation Debt Service Fund, investments are managed by
the financial institution serving as trustee for the Council.

As requirad by West Virginia Code, the mineral severance tax revenue appropriated annually for
debt service on the general obligation bonds Is deposited in the General Obligation Debt Service
Fund held by the Treasurer of the State of West Virginia and is invested in accordance with the Act
and in conformity with investment guidelines of the Board of Treasury Investments (BTI). The
Council's Debt Service Fund, which is included in the General Obligation Debt Service Fund's cash
balances, reports a carrying amaount of $1,019,582 at June 30, 2015.

In isk - West Virgini ey Market Pool

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The West Virginla Money Market Pool is subject to interest rate risk.

The overall weighted average maturity of the investments of the West Virginia Money Market Pool
cannot exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot exceed 397 days from date
of purchase, except for government floating rate notes, which can be up to 762 days. The following
table provides information on the weighted average maturitles for the various asset types in the WV
Money Market Pool:

Canmrying Value
Security Type (In Thousands) WAM {Days)
Repurchase agreements $ 12,523 1
U.S. treasury notes 229,760 75
U.S. freasury bills 92,059 123
Commercial paper 846,764 30
Certificates of deposit 203,005 51
U.8. agency discount notes 304,342 60
Corporate bonds and notes 30,000 75
U.S. agency bonds 81,994 58

Money market funds 80,017

$ 1,890,464 47
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

st Rate Risk - er men

As of June 30, 2015, the Council had the following Investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Laess than 1 1-6
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 2,870,313  § - $ 2870313
U.S. Treasury obligations 99,877,250 99,877,250 -
Money markets 250,758,111  __ 250,758,111 -

$ 353605674  $ 350,735,361 $ 2870313

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the
Authority’s investment guidelines for the Council limit the maturities of investments not matched to a
specific debt or obligation of the Council to five years or less, unless otherwise approved by the
Authority.

investments matched to obligations of the Council would include investments of reserve funds for
each of the Authority's outstanding revenue and refunding bond issues. The General Revenue Bond
Resolution requires that, while the bonds are outstanding, there be on deposlt in the reserve funds an
amount equal to the maximum amount of principal installments and interest coming due during the
current or any succeeding year. The Council has both the intent and the ability to hold long-term
securitles until final maturlty and thus is limited in its exposure to interest rate risk on these long-term
obligations.

Col tiol it Risk - W irgini ne Pool

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a
single corporate issuer. The BTI investment policy prohibits the West Virginia Money Market Pool
from Investing more than 5% of their assets in any one corporate name or one corporate issue. The
Wast Virginia Money Market Pool is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Con ion dit Risk - All Inve nts

The Authority’s investment guidelines for the Council manage concentration of credit risk by
limiting Iits Investment activity so that at any time its total investment portfolio will not exceed the
percentage limits as to the permitted Iinvestments. The enterprise fund investment portfolic’s
percentage of permitted investments is shown below:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES {Continued)

onceniration it Rigk - All Qther In n ntin
Maximum Enterprise Fund
Percentage Percentage as of
Permi In of Porifolio _June 30, 2015
(a) Direct Faderal Obligations 100% 28.27%
(b} Federally Guaranteed Obligations 100% -
{c) Federal Agency Cbligations 90% -
(d} Money Markets 90% 70.92%
(e) Repurchase Agreements/Investment
Contracts 90% 81%
{f) Time Deposits/Certlficates of Deposit 20% -
(g) Demand Deposits 30% -
{h) Corporate Obligations 15% -
() Cther State/Local Obligations 15% .
(i} West Virginia Obligations 15% -
{k) Housing Bonds — Securad by Annual
Contributions Contracts 5% -

With the exception of money market funds, repurchase agreements/investment contracts, time
deposits/cartificates of deposit and demand deposilis, investments that comprise more than 15% of
the investment portfolio must be direct federal, federal agency or federally guaranteed obligations.

All other Investments listed above that comprise more than 15% of the Investment portfclio must
be either provided by an institution with a rating of at least “A/A” by Moody’s and/or Standard and
Pecor's, invested in a money market fund rated "AAAmM" or “AAAM-G" or better by Standard and
Poor's, secured by obligations of the United States or not exceed the insurance limits established by
the FDIC unless adequate collateral is provided.

Credit Risk - West Virginia Money Market Pool

Cradit risk is the risk that an issuer or other ¢counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The WV Mocney Market Pool has been rated AAAm by the Standard & Poors. A fund
rated “AAAM™ has extremely strong capacity to maintain principal stability and to limit exposure to
principal losses due to credit, market and/or liquidity risks. "AAAM" is the highest principal stability
fund rating assigned by Standard & Poor's. The BTl itself has not been rated for credit risk by any
organization.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The BTI limits the exposure to credit rigk in the WV Money Market Pool by requiring all corporate
bonds to be rated AA- by Standard & Poor's (or its equivalent) or higher. Commercial paper must be
rated at least A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody's. The pool must have at least 15% of its
assets in U.S. Treasury issues. The following table provides information on the credit ratings of the

WV Money Market Pool's investments (in thousands}):

Credit Rating Percent of
Security Type Moody's S&P Carrying Value _Pool Assets

Commercial paper P-1 A-1+ $ 186,737 9.88 %
P-1 A-1 660,027 34,91
Corporate bonds and notes Aa3 A+ 10,005 0.53
Aad AA- 10,000 0.53
Aa3 NR 10,000 0.53
U.8. agency bonds Aaa AA+ 81,984 4.34
U.S.Treasury notes” Aaa AA+ 229,760 12.15
U.S. Treasury bills* P-1 A-1+ 92,059 4.87
Negotiable certificates of deposit An2 AA- 10,000 0.63
P-1 A-1+ 51,000 2.70
P-1 A-1 142,000 7.51
U.8. agency discount notes P-1 A1+ 304,342 16.10
Money market funds Aaa AAAM 90,017 4.76

Repurchase agresments {(underlying
securities):

U.S. treasury notes® Aaa AA+ 1,323 0.07
U.S. agency notes Aaa Al 11,200 0.59

$ 1,880,464 100.00 %

NR - Not rated by rating agency.

* US Treasury issues are explicitly guaranteed by the United States government and not subject

to credit risk.
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WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)

it Risk - All Other In
The table below provides information on the credit ratings of the Councii's cash equivalents and

Investments:
Standard &
Security Type Moody's Poors Fair Value

investment of bond proceeds:
Guaranteed investment contracts A2 AA- $§ 2870313
Investment of other revenues:
Money markets Apg-mf AAAM 250,758,111
U.S. Treasury obligations Aag-mf AAAM 99,977,250
Woest Virginla Money Market Pool - AAAmM 1,019,582

Total cash equivalents and Investments §__364,625,266

Credit risk with investment of bond proceeds is managed by the limltation on investment of those
proceeds in the following types of debt securities in accordance with the Authority’s investment
guidelines for the Council and the authorizing General Revenue Bond Resolution: Govermment
obligations, obligations of certain federal agencies, either representing the full faith and credit of the
United States of America or which are rated Aaa-mf by Moody's and AAAm by Standard and Poor's,
certain types of commercial paper, advance-refunded municipal bonds, certaln general obligations of
the State of West Virginia or any other state, or other forms of investments approved in writing by the
applicable bond insurer, if any.

Accordingly, the credit sk with the investment of cash assets other than bond proceeds, known
as “other revenues,” is managed by the limitation on investment of other revenues in the following
types of debt securities In accordance with the Authority’s investment guidelines for the Council:
direct obligations of or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, the State of West
Virginia or any other state, provided that obligations of other states mest certain requirements,
obligations of certain federal agencies, certain types of indebtedness of public agencles or
municipalities, corporate indebtedness meeting certain requirements or any other debt security
investment permitted with bond proceeds.

ustodial it Rigk - inia Mon |

For an investment, custodial credit risk Is the rigk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the BTI will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. Repurchase agresments are required to be
collateralized by at least 102% of their value, and the collateral is held in the name of the BTI. In all
transactions, the BT or its agent does not release cash or securities untll the counterparty delivers its
slde of the transaction.



28

WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

7 - DEPOSIT AND INVESTMENT RISK DISCLOSURES (Continued)
stodial Credit Risk - All O nts

The Authority’s investment guidelines for the Council put certain restrictions on repurchase
agreements, including the following: the Council can only enter Into repurchase agreements with
financial institutions having a credit rating of at least “A/A"; collateral is limited to direct federal,
federally guaranteed or federal agency obligations; collateral is required to be delivered to a third-
party custodian, the Council or the trustee; and, the financial institution must guarantee the aggregate
market value of the collateral will equal or exceed the outstanding repurchase agreement by the
margin specified in the respective repurchase agreement. As of June 30, 2015, the Council held no
securities that were subject to custodlal credit risk.

Forsign ney Risk - Al

Foreign currency risk Is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an Investment or a deposit. There are no securities that are subject to foreign currency risk.

A reconciliation of Investments as disclosed In this Note to the amounts reported on the
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund is as follows:

As disclosed In this Note:

Total investments $ 353,605,674
Less: cash equivalents (250.758.111)
Carrying amount of investments $102.847,563
As reported on the Statement of Net Position -
Proprietary Fund:
Investments $102,847,563

8 - REFUNDINGS OF DEBT

On January 29, 2015, the State Issued Infrastructure General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series
2015A, in the amount of $65,965,000, with Interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%, to advance
refund $6,250,000, $26,100,000, and $37,755,000 of the State’s outstanding Series 1996D, 1988A,
and a portion of the Series 2006 general obligation bonds, respectively, with interest rates ranging
from 4.275% to 5.25%. The proceeds of $79,239,638 (including original issue premium of
$12,939,803) and other funds available to the State were used to pay $334,705 In underwriting and
other Issuance costs relating to the refunding bond issue; and transfer funds to escrow of $6,250,000
and $37,755,000 for the Series 1996D and Series 2006 general obligation bonds, respectively, to be
called November 1, 2016, and $26,100,000 for the Serles 1998A to be called November 1, 2018, plus
accrued Interest. As a result of this advance refunding, these bonds are in substance defeased and
the liability for these bonds has been removed from the accompanying financial statements.

The State completed the refunding to reduce Its total debt service payments over the next 13
years by $9,899,653 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
old and new debt service requirements) of $8,876,601.
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8 - REFUNDINGS OF DEBT (Continued)

On January 29, 2015, the State also [ssued Infrastructure Genaral Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015B, in the amount of $5,690,000, with an interest rate of 2.0%, to refund $5,700,000 of the
State’s outstanding Series 1998C general obligation bonds with interest rates ranging from 6.6% to
8.625%. The proceeds of $5,861,560 (including original issue premium of $135,260) and other funds
available to the State were used to pay $32,558 in underwriting and other issuance costs relating to
the refunding bond Issue; provide for the March 2, 2015 refund of $5,700,000 of the Series 1999C
general obligation bonds, plus accrued interest through March 2, 2015.

The state completed the refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 5 years
by $690,887 and to obtain an economic gain of $675,980.
9 - LONG -TERM DEBT
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015:

Balance Additions/ Debt Balance
July 1,,2014 Accretions Reductions  June 30, 2015

Governmental fund type:
General Obligation Bonds*®

1996 Series A and D $ 14,245000 $ - § 6,250,000 § 7,995,000
1998 Series A 26,100,000 - 26,100,000 .
1989 Series C 6,900,000 - 6,900,000 -
1609 Series A Capital Appreciation 76,118,579 3,952,084 7,100,000 72,970,663
2006 Series A Refunding 82,020,000 - 41,780,000 40,260,000
2011 Series A Refunding 11,660,000 - 3,580,000 8,080,000
2015 Series A Refunding - 85,965,000 - 85,965,000
2015 Series B Refunding - 5,690,000 . 5,690,000

217,043,579 _ 75,607,084 _ 91,690,000 _ 200,960,663

Balance Additions/ Debt Balance
July 1, 2014 Accretions Reductions  June 30, 20156
Buslness type activity:
Revenue and Refunding Bonds
2006 Series A $ 39935000 $ - § 880,000 § 39,055,000
2006 Series B 9,735,000 - 650,000 9,085,000
2007 Series A 35,435,000 - 600,000 34,835,000
2012 Series A Refunding 26,100,000 - 490,000 25,610,000
2014 Serles A - 75,780,000 - 75,790,000

111,205,000 75,780,000 2,620,000 _ 184,375,000

Total $328,248,679 § 161,397,084 § 94,310,000 §$ 385,335,063
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9 - LONG -TERM DEBT (Continued)
Del rvi d

A 1894 Constitutional Amendment authorized the issuance of $300,000,000 In Infrastructure
General Obligation Bonds. The Infrastructure General Obligation Bonds were issued in four saeparate
issues totaling $299,893,910: Series 1996A - $35,300,000; Series 19968 $14,700,000; Series 1896C
- $10,000,000; Series 1996D - $50,000,000; Series 1996E - $7,000,000; Series 1998A - $68,000,000;
Series 1988B - $10,000,000; Series 1998C - $14,000,000; Series 1999A - $69,603,810; Series
1989B - $7,300,000; and Series 1999C - $14,000,000. In November 20086, the Infrastructure General
Obligetion Refunding Bonds, Series 2006, partially refunded the Series 1996A, Serles 1996D and
Series 1998A Bonds. In September 2011, the Infrastructure General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2011A, refunded the Series 1996B, Series 1998B, and Series 19998 Bonds. In January 2015,
the Infrastructure General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Serles 2015A, refunded Series 1996D, Serles
1988A, and partially refunded Series 2008. The Infrastructure General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Series 2015B, refunded Series 1999C.

The proceeds from the Council's bond programs provide financial assistance to infrastructure and
economic development projects throughout the state. All general cbligation bonds are considered a
moral obligation of the State of West Virginia. The source of repayment for the general obligation,
capital appreciation, and refunding bonds Is the annual receipt of $23 million of mineral severance tax
revenue deposited into the Governmental Fund from the State’s general fund. Principal, net of
accretion, and interest paid on these bonds were $15,885,000 and $5,731,903, respactively for the
year ended June 30, 2015.

Future maturities of general obligation bonds and capltal appreciation bonds, with interest rates
ranging from .20% to 7.625% and maturing through 2027, are as follows:

General Obligation Bonds:

Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 9,355,000 § 5663153 §$ 15,018,153
2017 9,710,000 5,220,613 14,930,613
2018 9,980,000 4,752,900 14,732,900
2018 10,530,000 4,249,031 14,778,031
2020 8,635,000 3,739,563 13,374,563

49,210,000 23,625,260 72,835,260
2021 - 2025 51,050,000 11,206,819 62,256,819
2026 - 2027 27,730,000 1,123,138 28,853 138

78,780,000 12,329,857 91,108,857

$ 127,990,000 § 35055217 § 163,045217
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t Service Fun in

Capital Appreciation Bonds:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

2021 - 2025
2026 - 2027

Total capital appreciation bonds

Total general obligation bonds and
capital appreciation bonds

Add: unamortized premium

Less: amount due within one year

Amount due after one year

K}

{Continued)
Principal, net of
amounts to be Amounts to be
accreted in future accreted in future
years years Total
$ 6927654 § 122348 § 7,050,000
6,640,202 484,788 7,125,000
6,240,327 834,673 7,075,000
5,862,332 1,162,668 7,025,000
6,777.868 1,797,112 8,575,000
32,448 403 4,401,597 36,850,000
30,133,343 14,718,857 44 850,000
10,388,817 8,311,083 18,700,000
40,522 260 23,027,740 63,550,000
72970683 § 27429337 § 100,400,000
200,880,663
15,003,416
{17,786,610)

$ 198,177,469
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9 - LONG -TERM DEBT {Continued)
Busin e Activi

Future maturities of principal and interest of revenue and refunding bonds, with interest ranging
from 2.0% to 5.0% and maturing through October 2045, are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 6035000 $ 8346848 § 14,381,848
2017 5,205,000 8,095,588 13,300,598
2018 5,430,000 7,859,423 13,289,423
2019 5,645,000 7,607,285 13,252,285
2020 5,840,000 7,340,154 13,280,154
28,255,000 39,249,308 67,504,308
2021 - 2025 33,905,000 32,186,359 66,091,359
2026 - 2030 40,630,000 23,614,888 64,244,888
2031 - 2035 48,755,000 13,357,888 62,112,888
2036 - 2040 23,285,000 4,650,194 27,935,194
2041 - 2045 8,655,000 1,188,806 8,843,806
2048 880,000 21,138 911,138
156,120,000 75,018,273 231,139,273
Total revenue and refunding bonds 184,375,000 $ 114,268,581 $ 208,643,581
Add: unamortized premium 13,449,325
Less: unamortized discount (62,510)

Less: amount due within one year (8.713.639)

Amount due after one year $ 191,048,276

Series 2014 A bonds, in the face amount of $75,790,000, with an interest rate of 5%, were issued
October 16, 2014. The proceeds of $88,140,935 {including original issue premium of $12,350,935)
were used to pay $604,567 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs relating to the bond issue,
and the balance of $87,536,368 was transferred to a project fund to provide grants for the
Chesapeake Bay/Greenbrier Watershed projects.

The $6,000,000 statutory allocation of revenues from the State Excess Lottery Revenue Fund to
the Council will pay annual debt service on the 2014 Series A Bonds. West Virginia Code §28-22-18a
prescribes the priority and timing of the deposits to the Council for debt service.

The primary source of repayment for the remaining revenue and refunding bonds is the receipt of
payments of principal and interest on a set of loans, known as defined loans, previously made to
projects from general obligation and revenue bond proceeds. Repayments of principal and interest
on the defined loans of $7,649,486 and $922,707 respectively were available for revenue bond debt
service of $7,365,948, comprised of $2,620,000 for principal and $4,745,948 for interest, respectively
for the year ended June 30, 2015.
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9 - LONG -TERM DEBT (Contlnued)
Busin i Contlinued

The bonds are subject to the arbitrage rebate provisions of the Intemal Revenue Code which
requiras that 80% of excess investment eamings on the bond proceeds be paid to the Unlted States
Internal Revenue Service every five years in order for the bonds to maintain their tax-exempt status.
As of June 30, 2015, the Council had no liability for excess Investment eamings cn bond proceeds.

In prior years, certain general obligation bonds and revenue bonds were defeased by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the
refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust assets and the llability for the defeased bonds are not included
in the Council's financial statements. At June 30, 2015, there were $70,105,000 in defeased general
obligation bonds outstanding.

10 - TRANSACTIONS WITH STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA AGENCIES

The Councll received $23 miliion of mineral severance tax revenue from the State’s general fund
Into the Debt Service Fund to accommodate the gensral obligation bonds debt service payments
required in fiscal year 2015. Funds remaining after the payment of general obligation bonds debt
service have been transferrad to the Enterprise Fund to provide additional lending and granting
capacity, which is consistent with the Council’s purpose.

Woast Virginia Code §298-22-18a {Section 18a) created within the State’s lottery fund in the State
Treasury an excess lottery revenue fund from which moneys are disbursed in specific allocations to
various State accounts, including the Council. In accordance to House Bill 205, $26 million was
appropriated to the West Virginia Infrastructure Councll during fiscal year 2015 with the first $6 milllon
to be used for debt service on the Series 2014 bonds that were issued for the Chesapeake Bay and
Greenbrier Watershed projects and the remaining $20 million to be used for water, wastewater and
aeconomic developmant projects around the state.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Councll contributed $1,769,000 to the Bureau for
Public Health for the required State match for the federally sponsored Drinking Water Treatment
Revolving Fund to secure federal dollars and continue that program. Also during the year ended June
30, 2015, the Councll contributed $4,377,600 to the Department of Environmental Protection as
required State match for the federally sponsored Clean Water State Revolving Fund for the purpose
of securing federal dollars and continuing that program.

The West Virginla Water Development Authority (the Authority) as the fiduciary agent of the
Cauncil, pays for certain expenses on behalf of the Council. As of June 30, 2015, the Councll had
incurred $898,944 of expenses of which $194,684 remains unpaid at June 30, 2015,
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11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Pension Plan
Plan Description

The Councif contributes to the PERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB). PERS covers
substantially all employees of the State and its component units, as well as employees of participating
non-state governmental entities who are not particlpants of another state or municipal system.
Benefits under PERS include retirement, death and disabllity benefits, and have been established
and may be amended by action of the State Legislature. The CPRB issues a publicly avallable
financial report that includes financial statements for PERS that may be obtained at
www.wvratirement.com.

Benefits Provided

PERS provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Qualification for
normal retirament Is age 60 with five years of service or at least age 55 with age and service equal to
80 or greater. The straight-life annuity retirement benefit is equivalent to 2% of average salary
multiplied by vears of service. Average salary Is the average of the highest annual compensation
during any period of three ¢onsecutive years within the last fifteen years of earnings. Terminated
members with at least five years of contributory service who do not withdraw their accumulated
contributions may elact to receive their retirement annuity beginning at age 62.

Coniributions

Although contributions are not actuarlally determined, actuarial valuations are performed to assist
the Legislature in establishing eppropriate contribution rates. Current funding policy requires
contributions, consisting of member contributions of 4.5% of covered payroll and employer
contributions of 14.0%, 14.5%, and 14.0% for the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively.

During the years ended June 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013, the Councifs contributions to PERS
required and made were approximately $42,080, $37,400, and $32,210, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2015, the Council reported a liability of $77,670 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liabllity was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension llabllity was determined by an actuarlal valuation as of June
30, 2013, rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2014. The Council's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on the Council's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the contributions of all employers participating in PERS for the year ended June 30, 2014. At June 30,
2014, the Council's proportion was .021083 percent, which was a decrease of 0.000039 from its
proportlon measured as of June 30, 2013,
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11 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Pension Plan (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Council recognized penslon expense of $9,667. At June
30, 2015, the Council reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments $ - % 82,164
Changes in proportion and differences between
The Council's contributions and proportionate share

of contributions 2,687
The Council's contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date of June 30, 2014 42,090 -
Total $ 44777 § 82164

$42,090 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to penslons resulting from the
Council's contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferrad outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Year ended June 30,

2016 $ {19,719)

2017 {19,719)

2018 (19,719)

2019 {20,320)
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all pariods in the measurement;

Inflation 2.2 percent
Salary increases 4.25 - 6.0 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of retum 7.5 percent, net of penslon plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the 1983 GAM for healthy males, 1971 GAM for healthy females,
1971 GAM for disabled males, and Revenue Ruling 96-7 for disabled females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based cn the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2009.
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Pension Pl inued

The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
retums, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of retum for each major
asset class are summarized in the following table:

Targst Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Retumn
Fixed income 15.0% 2.9-4.8%
Domestic equity 27.5% 7.6%
Intemational equity 27.5% 8.5%
Real estate 10.0% 6.8%
Private equity 10.0% 9.9%
Hedge funds 10.0% 5.0%
Total —_—100%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension llabllity was 7.5 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at
the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers wiil continue to be made at
statutorily required rates, which are determined annually based on actuarial valuations. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employses. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. Although discount rates are subject to change
between measurement dates, there were no changes In the discount rate In the current period.

Sensitivity of the Council's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabliity to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the Council's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.5 percent, as well ag what the Council's proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be If it were caiculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower
or one-percantage-point higher than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase

—(65%) = _Rale(7.5%) __ (8.5%)

The Council's proportionate share of
the net pension liabllity (asset) $ 220225 § 77670 $ {43,304)
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12 - SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses in the enterprise fund for the year ended June 30, 2015,
were as follows:

Salaries and benefits $ 435,738
Legal 140,569
Consulting and professional 63,994
Rentals 91,106
Travel and training 8,810
Office supplies 5,230
Computer services 3,871
Telecommunications 2,287
Trustee 104,881
Insurance 3,378
Postage 375
Property taxes 5,969
Association Dues 225
Storage Expense 90

Total general and administrative $ 866523

13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Council is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and natural
disasters.

The Councll has obtained coverage for job-related injuries to employees and health coverage for
its employees in exchange for the payment of premiums to a commercial insurance provider and
WVPEIA. Accordingly, the Council has transferred its risk related to job-related Injuries and health
coverage for employees.

The Council obtained coverage transferring its risk for general liability, property damage,
business interruption, errors and omissions, and natural disasters from the West Virginia Board of
Risk and Insurance Management in exchange for an annual premium. There were no changes in any
of the above coverages or claims In excess of coverage for the year ended June 30, 2015.

14 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION

Restrictions of net position are the result of constraints placed on the use of net position which
have been imposed through third party bond indentures and enabling legislation. The enterprise fund
Statement of Net Position reports $618,800,124 of restricted net position, of which $97,685,377 is
restricted for the debt service related to the defined loan program segment of the revenue bonds.
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15 - COMMITMENTS

The Council's Enterprise- Fund has issued commitments to loan or grant funds to qualifying
applicants for a period of time contingent on numerous actions to be completed by the applicants. As
of June 30, 2015, $62,350,300 was designated by the Council for loans and grants to water,
wastewater, and economic development projects. The Council also has commitments to provide
grants in the amount of $55,439,000 for Chesapeake Bay and Greenbrier Watershed projects. The
Council has also designated $1,757,400 for contributions to one State agency for the required State
match for federally sponsored revolving funds,

On October 15, 2015, the Board of Directors of the West Virginia Water Development Authority
authorized the advance refunding of the 2007 Series A bonds in the amount of $34,210,000 through
issuance of the West Virginla Water Development Authority Infrastructure Refunding Revenue Bonds
(West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Council Program) 2015 Serles A bonds in the
amount not to exceed $37,000,000. The Issuance of the bonds is subject to market conditions, certain
other conditions, and the approval of other State of West Virginia government agencies. The
refunding of the above bonds is being considered to provide significant debt service savings.

16 - NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Appiication, which
provides guidance for determining a falr value measurement for financial reporting purposes. This
statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures
related to all fair value measurements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The Council's management has not determined
the effect, if any, this statement will have on its financial statements.

The GASB has issued three statements relating to accounting and financial reporting for pension
and postemployment benefit plans: Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments to Cerlaln Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68 and Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The
provisions of Statement No. 73 are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June
15, 2016, and the provisions of Statement No. 75 are effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2017. The Council's management has not determined the effect, If any, these statements will have on
its financial statements.

The GASB has Issued Statement No. 76, The Hlerarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments, which Identifies the hierarchy of generally accepted
accounting principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governments. This
statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hisrarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for State and Local Governments. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2016. The Council's management has not determined
the effect, If any, this statement wili have on its financial statements.

17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION
The presentation of segment information for the Council's Enterprise Fund, which conforms with

GAAP. The Defined Loan Program segment consists of a series of defined loans, which are the
primary source of repayment of the revenue bonds, as dictated by the bond resolutions.
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17 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Assets:

Current
Noncurrent

Total assets

Deferred outflowe of resources:
Losses on bond refundings

Llabilitles:
Current
Noncurrent

Total liabllities

Net position:
Restricted

Operating revenue:
Charges for services

Operating expenses:
General and administrative
Interest on bonds

Operating loss:
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest and Investment revenue, net of arbitrage

Other
Transfers (net}

Change In net position
Beginning net position
Ending net position
Cash flows:

Net cash provided (used) by:
Operating activites

Noncapital financing activities
Investing activities

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

Ending cash and cash equivalents

Defined Loan
Program

$§ 21,635,399

185,108,636
$ 206,743,835

2,268,130
$ 2,268,130

$ 4,135,600
107,201,188

97,685,377
$ 822,707

202,827
4,775,525

(4,145,845)

139,019
(22,729)

(4,180,605)
(8,210,050)

105,785,427

87,585,377

$§  3,842470
{8,757,851)

1 38:521

16,677,873

$ 13,801,213
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THE WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Public Employees Retirement System Plan

June 30, 2015

The Council's proportion (percentage) of the net pension liability 0.0232%
The Council's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 77,8670
The Councll's covered employee payroll $ 330,997
The Council's proportionate share of the net pension's liability

as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 23.47%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension llability 93.88%

Note: All amounts are presented as of the measurement date, which is one year
prior to the flscal year end date.

See Independent Auditor's Report and accompanying Note to Required Supplementary Information.
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SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PERS

Years Ended June 30
2015 2014 2013

Statutorily required contribution $ 42000 $ az400 $ 32,210
Contributions in relation to the statutorily

required contribution (42,090) (37,400) (32,210)

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - % - § -

The Council's covered employee payroll $§ 301,770 § 257684 $§ 232,960
Contributions as a percentage of covered-

employee payroll 13.85% 14.51% 13.83%

See Independent Auditor's Report and accompanying Note to Required Supplementary Information.



42

THE WEST VIRGINIA INFRASTRUCTURE AND JOBS DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1- TREND INFORMATION PRESENTED

The accompanying schedules of the Council's proportionate share of the net pension liability and
contributions to PERS are required supplementary Information to be presented for 10 years.
However, until a full 10 year trend Is compiled, information Is presented in the schedules for those
years for which information Is available.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Woest Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development Councit
Charleston, West Virginia

Woe have audited, in accordance with the audlting standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the govermnmental activities,
business-type activities, and each major fund of the West Virginia Infrastructure and Jobs Development
Council (the Council), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financlal statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated October 23, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Council's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate In the
clrcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financlal statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deflciency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibllity that @ material misstatement of the
Council’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on atimely basis. A significant
deficlency is a deficlency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify ail deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficlencies in
Internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been Identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Council's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financlal statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provislons was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemnal control
or on compllance. This report is an integral part of an audit preformed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
in not suitable for any other purpose.
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Charleston, West Virginia
October 23, 2015
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